
Page 1 of 1 

Anthony J. Picente Jr. 
County Executive 

Shawna M. Papale  
Secretary/ Treasurer/ 

Executive Director 

Timothy Fitzgerald 
Assistant Secretary 

584 Phoenix Drive 
Rome, New York 13441-4105 
(315) 338-0393, fax (315) 338-5694
info@mvedge.org;  www.mvedge.org

David C. Grow 
Chairman 

Michael Fitzgerald 
Vice Chairman 

Ferris Betrus Jr. 

Kirk Hinman 

Mary Faith Messenger 

Eugene Quadraro 

Stephen Zogby 

To: Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Board of Directors 
From: Shawna M. Papale 
Date:  December 4, 2023 
RE: OCIDA Meeting Agenda 

The Oneida County Industrial Development Agency shall meet – 8:00 AM Friday, December 8th, 2023 
Members of the public may attend in person at MV EDGE offices at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY 13441. The 
Minutes of the Agency meeting will be transcribed and posted on the OCIDA website. 

1. Executive Session

2. Minutes- October 2023

3. Financials- October 2023

4. Consider a resolution relating to the ICA Holdings III, LLC (Indium Woods Park Drive) Facility, 
consenting to the sublease of a portion of the facility, subject to the inclusion of the Agency’s standard 
language in the sublease.

5. Consider a resolution relating to the SQ1 Holdings, LLC Facility, consenting to a change of control 
transaction with Crescent Aerospace Technologies, LLC.

6. Consider a resolution relating to the ECR Properties, Inc. Facility, authorizing the termination of the 
PILOT Agreement and all Agency Documents and recapture of financial assistance.

7. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the EDGE/Marcy Nanocenter Flex Space Facility, 
granting preliminary approval for financial assistance in the form of exemptions from sales tax (valued at
$61,250.00), exemptions from mortgage recording taxes (valued at $66,060.00), and providing for 
payment of PILOT Payments in accordance with the Agreement Approving PILOT Terms and Allocating 
PILOT Payments dated October 2013 (Marcy Nanocenter) (payments over 49 years estimated at
$8,587,378.00), which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption 
Policy, and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing.

8. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the EDGE/Marcy Nanocenter Flex Space Facility. The Agency 
is serving as lead agency and wishes to adopt a negative declaration for a Type 1 action, and provide a 
copy of the negative declaration to the Town of Marcy Supervisor.

9. OCIDA-EDGE 2024 Contract

10. Old Business

11. New Business

Next meeting date – FRIDAY, January 19th at 8 AM at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY 

mailto:info@mvedge.org
http://www.mvedge.org/
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Minutes of the Meeting of the  
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

October 16, 2023 
584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY  

And via Webex Video/Teleconference 

Members Present: David Grow, Ferris Betrus, Mike Fitzgerald, Kirk Hinman, Steve Zogby. 

Members Present – WebEx: Gene Quadraro, Mary Faith Messenger 

EDGE Staff Present: Shawna Papale, Steven DiMeo, Tim Fitzgerald, Laura Cohen, Mark Kaucher, Hannah Phillips, Bill Van 
Shufflin. 

EDGE Staff Present – WebEx: Maureen Carney 

Other Attendees:  Jenna Peppenelli and Mark Levitt, Levitt & Gordon; Rome Mayor Jackie Izzo, Shaun Kaleta, Oneida 
County; Debbie Dam, ECR International; Genevieve Trigg, Barclay Damon. 

Other Attendees – WebEx: Laura Ruberto, Bond, Schoeneck & King; Joe Tassone, Above Grid Rome, LLC; Dan 
Huntington, Hamza Khalil, Gareth McDonald, BW Solar Holding Inc.; Robert Ryan, Harris Beach PLLC; Matt Effler, 
Catalyze LLC. 

Chair Grow called the meeting to order at 8:05 AM. 

Minutes – September 15, 2023 
M. Fitzgerald requested a spelling change to “Chair Grow” in the September minutes. S. Zogby moved to approve the
September 15, 2023 minutes, as corrected. K. Hinman seconded the motion, which carried 7-0.

Financials 
M. Carney presented the 9/30/2023 interim financial statement. Cash was just over $800,000 which is down $38,000
over the last twelve months. She stated she needs to follow up on The Hartford PILOT and will report back to the Agency
on payments at the next meeting. All annual rents have been received for the year. The open projects list has been
cleaned up. Kris-Tech project has closed. Two new application fees were received in the past month. She also shared
that she is working with Rome City School District to ensure consistency with PILOT allocations, rates, and billing. The
2022 PARIS report has been uploaded into the PARIS portal, along with the Agency’s approved 2024 budget. The Audit
Committee will be meeting soon to discuss the upcoming audit season. M. Fitzgerald reminded S. Papale to draft a
management letter prior to the end of December and to include it in the annual audit. The Agency received and
accepted the interim financials presented, subject to audit.

S. Papale requested that Agenda item Number 8 be covered next. There were no objections.

Annual Project Review – ECR International 
S. Papale introduced Debbie Dam, Executive Director of Administration at ECR International, and gave a brief reminder
of the modified PILOT request that was made in January 2022. She then gave a summary of the approved PILOT benefits
and the most recent jobs report: ECR is ceasing manufacturing operations at their Utica facility in January 2024 but will
retain some operations locally. The Utica facility currently has 80 employees. The business is owned by a Quebec
company which reviewed production lines and decided to consolidate manufacturing operations to ECR’s sister location
in Dunkirk, NY. The owners had long planned to consolidate manufacturing to Dunkirk for efficiency and sell the building
in Utica. A WARN Notice was issued on October 6th. The union employees will be let go after 90 days; 35-40 salaried
employees will remain in Utica. They are currently looking for office space and are considering space in the Utica
Business Park. ECR’s current core product lines do not meet new US Department of Energy efficiency standards, which is
also causing the business to change direction and reduce production of lines that were made in Utica. In December
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2021, employment was at 162; in December 2022, employment was 113. M. Fitzgerald then opined that he feels bad 
about the loss of jobs, but this Agency has a responsibility to the taxing jurisdictions to enforce the contract in place. 
Chair Grow opined that the contract and potential clawback are two different considerations. S. Papale stated that staff 
has not performed a calculation of the potential clawback amount. Chair Grow asked for a motion to direct staff to 
notify the business of its failure to comply with the PILOT agreement. M. Fitzgerald made a motion to ask staff to notify 
ECR International of the fact that they are in a major jobs shortfall, and it is the intent of the Agency to enforce the 
relevant provisions of the PILOT agreement, including a clawback of benefits. M.F. Messenger seconded the motion. 
The motion carried 7-0. 
 
Above Grid Rome, LLC  –  Final Authorizing Resolution 
Chair Grow introduced a final authorizing resolution relating to the Above Grid Rome, LLC Facility, authorizing financial 
assistance in the form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of 25 years during which time the Company will 
pay PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 per MW-AC (value of exemption approximately $34,817.00), which is consistent 
with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and approving the form and execution of related documents, subject to 
counsel review. The Agency conducted a public hearing on October 18, 2023. S. Papale first pointed out that the 
calculated PILOT benefit for this proposed project and the proposed BW Solar project are quite different. She shared 
that this comes down to the way in which municipal assessors are assessing the land on which solar projects will be 
built. Chair Grow said that State statute states that land associated with a solar project is exempt from an increased 
assessment, but some assessors are not following this interpretation. This leads to significantly different values in 
assessment. M. Fitzgerald stated that how the assessors evaluate the land outside of project acreage is not a concern of 
the Agency. Chair Grow stated that with most solar projects, taxing jurisdictions create sub-parcels on which the project 
will take place, so that it doesn’t create an issue on the entire parcel. But when jurisdictions do not follow this approach, 
it impacts the overall assessment and therefore the calculated benefits of the project. G. Trigg, representing Above Grid 
Rome, LLC with Barclay Damon, then weighed in. She stated that this is an assessment issue in which municipal 
assessors are getting this wrong. She stated that, according to State law, assessors ought to be using the assessment tool 
that was created by New York State to ensure consistency. Litigation over this assessment model has been resolved, and 
the model has been upheld as valid. It is therefore the responsibility of landowners to ensure that no increased 
assessment occurs. Ms. Trigg also pointed out that this project is taking place on land that is already tax-exempt (as it is 
owned by RIDC), which may factor into the large difference in each project’s calculated benefit. Chair Grow stated that 
the responsibility of the Agency is to calculate a benefit based on the information received on the project and to be clear 
as to what benefit is being offered. Ms. Trigg suggested that if the given assessment model stays as it is currently 
formulated, some solar projects in the County may end up terminating benefits because the taxes will be less than the 
PILOT payment. M. Fitzgerald stated that the court of law will decide the assessment issue, and that it is not necessary 
or appropriate to offer legal advice to landowners in these situations. F. Betrus asked to clarify that the proposed benefit 
to the Above Grid project was $34,817. S. Papale confirmed. S. Zogby moved to approve the final authorizing resolution 
relating to the Above Grid Rome, LLC Facility, authorizing financial assistance in the form of reduction of real property 
taxes for a period of 25 years during which time the Company will pay PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 per MW-AC 
(the final value of the exemption will be calculated by staff, with assistance from bond counsel), which is consistent 
with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and approving the form and execution of related documents, subject 
to counsel review. M. Fitzgerald seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-1, with F. Betrus opposed. 
 
Above Grid Rome, LLC  –  Change of Control 
Ms. Trigg reminded the Agency members that in Above Grid Rome’s initial request, a request for consent of change of 
control was included. This request was included proactively since the business was in negotiations with Catalyze LLC. 
Information has been submitted describing Catalyze LLC and its members. She explained that Catalyze is a national 
renewable energy business with over 100 MW of renewable power in its portfolio. She introduced Matt Effler from 
Catalyze LLC to answer any questions. 
E. Quadraro left the meeting at 9:12 AM. 
M. Fitzgerald made a motion to approve the transfer of ownership of Above Grid Rome LLC to Catalyze Holdings LLC. 
K. Hinman seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-1, with F. Betrus opposed. 
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BW Solar Holding Inc.  – Final Authorizing Resolution and Change of Control 
Chair Grow introduced a final authorizing resolution relating to the NY CDG ONEIDA 2, LLC/BW Solar Inc. Facility, 
authorizing financial assistance in the form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of 25 years during which time 
the Company will pay PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 per MW-AC (value of exemption approximately $1,120,396.00), 
which is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, AND consenting to the anticipated change of 
control transaction to Catalyze LLC, and approving the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel 
review. The Agency conducted a public hearing on October 13, 2023. M. Fitzgerald made a motion to approve the final 
authorizing resolution and change of control, as read. S. Zogby seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-1, with F. 
Betrus opposed. 
 

B240 LLC (Air City Lofts Phase 2) – Consent to Sublease 

Consider a resolution relating to the B240 LLC (Air City Lofts Phase 2) Facility, consenting to the sublease of a portion of 
the Facility to Babbling Brook Childcare, LLC, subject to counsel review of the proposed sublease agreement. F. Betrus 
moved to consent to the sublease of a portion of the Facility to Babbling Brook Childcare, LLC, subject to counsel 
review of the proposed sublease agreement. M. Fitzgerald seconded the motion. L. Ruberto clarified that counsel 
needs to confirm that certain exculpatory language is included so that the Agency is adequately protected. Chair Grow 
congratulated the owner of the facility for being able to attract a childcare provider to the facility. The motion carried 6-
0.  
 
Housing Policy 
Chair Grow introduced a resolution extending the Agency’s existing Housing Policy for a period of two years, through 
December 31, 2025. Notices were sent to the affected taxing jurisdictions on October 9, 2023. M. Fitzgerald made a 
motion to approve the resolution. K. Hinman seconded the motion. S. Kaleta then explained that Oneida County’ 
housing study is expected to commence before the end of 2023 and will conclude in about twelve months. S. Papale 
stated that one comment was received from a taxing jurisdiction after notification, with the Marcy Town Supervisor 
contending that the definition of “urbanism” is too broad. The motion carried 6-0. 
 
At 9:22 AM F. Betrus moved, and S. Zogby seconded, a motion to enter executive session to discuss potential 
contracts. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
At 10:06 F. Betrus moved, and M. Fitzgerald seconded, a motion to exit executive session. Motion carried, 6-0. 
 
At 10:06 F. Betrus moved, and K. Hinman seconded, a motion to adjourn. Motion carried, 6-0. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Tim Fitzgerald 
 



Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

October 31, 2023 

 

Balance Sheet:  

1. Cash has increased by 5% over the last 12 months; this is primarily due to the increase in accounts payable 

2. The balance in restricted cash is made up of the PILOT holdings related to the Indium (Hartford) PILOT and 

Sovena 

3. The $1,000 commitment fees collected from the following for projects that have not closed as of June 2023: 

1. Central Utica Building (received November 2021) 

2. Solitude Solar, LLC (received February 2022) 

3. Collins Solar (received March 2023) 

4. Yoder Properties (received May 2023) 

5. Above Grid LLC (received September 2023) 

6. BW Solar-NY CDG Oneida 2 (received September 2023) 

4. The balance in accounts payable include the quarterly insurance premiums and September and October staff 

service payments; checks were cut in November for all of the outstanding accounts payable 

5. Fund balance decreased by 3% over the last 12 months 

 

Budget Comparison Report (Income Statement): 

 

1. Interest earned on the 3 CD’s has been booked through 10/31 

2. Year to date revenue is under budget; closings and application fees received to date are as follows: 

 
3. Fees incurred under marketing are for website development paid to Quadsimia 

4. In 2022 $7,500 was authorized to support Madison Oneida Boces tuition reimbursement, the 2nd invoice 

from Madison Oneida Boces has been received and paid; total paid is $7,312.50  

  

Other Significant Items to Note: 

 

1. The IDA received all payments related to the Hartford PILOT for 2022 and payments to the jurisdictions 

were made in accordance with the PILOT agreement; 2 payments of the 3 have been received by Indium for 

the last year of the Hartford PILOT; the Agency will distribute the funds once all are billed by the 

jurisdictions and received by the Agency 

2. A meeting has been scheduled with Rome City School District to discuss outstanding PILOT bills for the 

GLDC buildings and Sovena 

1/30/2023 Solar Power Capital (SSC Kirkland) Admin & Commitment Fee 41,580.40

2/7/2023 Kris-Tech Wire Application Fee 500.00

3/15/2023 Fiber Instrument Sales Admin & Commitment Fee 1,918.00

3/21/2023 Mohawk Adirondack & Northern RR Corp Application Fee 500.00

3/21/2023 Collins Solar Application Fee 500.00

5/8/2023 Yoder Properties AKA Stark Truss Application Fee 500.00

6/20/2023 McCraith Beverages/STD Realty Application Fee 500.00

6/29/2023 Facilities Realty Management Vernon LLC Admin Fee 1,500.00

7/31/2023 Mohawk Adirondack & Northern RR Corp Admin & Commitment Fee 5,000.00

9/12/2023 BW Solar- NY CDG Oneida 2 Application Fee 500.00

9/21/2023 Above Grid LLC Application Fee 500.00

9/28/2023 Kris Tech Wire Admin & Commitment Fee 53,875.00

9/30/2023 EDF Renewables 1 Admin Fee 500.00

9/30/2023 EDF Renewables 2 Admin Fee 500.00

Total as of 10/31/23 108,373.40



Current Year Prior Year

861,621 823,826 1

391,932 318,892 2

PILOT Holdings- Payment Received (391,932) (318,892) 2

0 500 

4,379 1,494 

866,000 825,819 

6,679 6,679 

(6,679) (6,679)

0 0 

866,000 825,819 

56,806 2,583 3

6,370 5,833 

6,000 9,000 4

69,177 17,416 

69,177 17,416 

396,823 408,403 5

400,000 400,000 

796,823 808,403 

866,000 825,819 

Accounts Payable 

Total Assets

Liabilities

Restricted Cash - PILOT Holdings

A/D-Furniture/Fixt/Eqpt 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Balance Sheet

Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Fund Balance

Fund Balance-Board Restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred Revenue

Current Liabilities

October 31, 2023 and 2022

Fixed Assets

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Prepaid Expenses

Furniture/Fixture/Eqpt

Current Assets

Liabilities & Net Assets

Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Total Fixed Assets



Current Period

Actual

Current Period

Budget

Year-to-Date

Actual

Year-to-Date

Budget 10/31/2022 10/31/2021

Reimbursements 0 0 216 0 0 0 

Interest Income & Miscellaneous 4,722 92 20,257 1 917 1,187 420 

Lease Payments 750 4,563 57,000 45,625 51,000 46,750 

PILOT Application / Admin Fees 0 23,333 108,373 2 233,333 198,283 219,220 

PILOT Clawback MSP 0 0 0 0 0 65,000 

5,472 27,988 185,846 279,875 250,470 331,390 

Business Expense 20 83 1,115 433 234 70 

Contracted Service-Accounting 625 625 6,250 6,250 5,833 5,833 

Contracted Services - Legal 850 850 8,500 8,500 8,450 8,000 

Legal Services & PILOT Clawback MSP 0 0 0 0 0 10,653 

Contracted Services- Other 3,487 417 5,010 4,167 3,269 58,131 

Marketing- Contracted Services 0 83 6,330 3 833 915 45 

Dues & Subscriptions 0 167 1,250 1,667 1,250 1,385 

Insurance - General 371 333 3,270 3,333 3,327 3,180 

Special ED Projects Contingency 10,417 10,417 104,167 104,167 83,333 83,333 

Tuition Agreement 0 0 3,750 4 0 0 0 

Office Supplies & Expense 120 0 400 400 550 690 

Seminars & Conferences 2,625 250 2,625 2,500 3,679 1,300 

Service Fees 14,700 14,700 147,000 147,000 140,000 133,333 

33,215 27,925 289,666 279,250 250,840 305,953 

(27,743) 62 (103,820) 625 (370) 25,437 

Total Revenue

Expenses

Total Expenses

Excess or (Deficiency) of 

Revenue Over Expenses

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Budget Comparison Report

Current Period: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023

Budget Period: 1/1/2023 - 10/31/2023

With Comparative Periods Ending 10/31/2022 and 10/31/2021

3Revenue



Cash Flows From ( Used by) Operating Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (11,580)$        

Adjustments for Noncash Transactions

Depreciation and Amortization 0

(Increase) Decrease in Assets

Accounts Receivable 500

Accounts Receivable-PILOTs billed 0

Prepaid Expenses (2,886)

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 54,760

Deferred Revenue (3,000)

PILOT Funds Due 0

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 37,795

Cash Flows From (Used By) Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures 0

Net Cash From (Used by) Investing Activities 0

Cash Flows From (Used By) Financing Activities

Repayments of Long Term Debt 0

Proceeds from  Long Term Debt 0

Net Cash Flows (Used by) Financing Activities 0

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 37,795

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 823,826

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period 861,621$        

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period Ending October 31, 2023



16878669.1 12/1/2023

Resolution Consenting to Sublease
ICA Holdings III, LLC
(Indium Woods Park Drive) Facility

Date: December 8, 2023

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) held 
at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on December 8, 2023, the following members of 
the Agency were:

Members Present: 

Members Present – WebEx: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

EDGE Staff Present – WebEx: 

Other Attendees:  

Other Attendees – WebEx: 

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that among 
the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters pertaining to 
consenting to the sublease of commercial space at the ICA Holdings III, LLC (Indium Woods 
Park Drive) Facility.

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with the 
following members voting:

Voting Aye Voting Nay
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RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE SUBLEASE OF COMMERCIAL SPACE WITH 
RESPECT TO THE ICA HOLDINGS III, LLC (INDIUM WOODS PARK DRIVE) 
FACILITY LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, ONEIDA COUNTY.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York (collectively, 
the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among other things, to assist 
with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Company previously requested the Agency’s assistance in connection 
with acquisition and renovation of a three-story, 124,000± square foot office building and other 
site development work (the “Improvements”) situated on a 13.5± acre parcel of land located at 
301 Woods Park Drive, Town of New Hartford, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”) and 
acquisition and installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all for the purpose of providing a corporate headquarters to support, expand and 
better utilize the current manufacturing facilities operated by the Indium Sublessee in Oneida 
County (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment are referred to collectively as the 
“Facility” and the acquisition, renovation and equipping of the Facility is referred to as the 
“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility to the Company pursuant to a First Amended 
and Restated Leaseback Agreement dated as of November 15, 2022 (the “Leaseback”); and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Leaseback the Agency must consent to the sublease 
of any portion of the Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted to the Agency a request to consent to sublease 
approximately 21,643 square feet of the Facility to a commercial subtenant (the “Sublease 
Consent”), which request identifies the commercial subtenant to the Agency on a confidential 
basis.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as follows:

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines:

(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and

(c) The Sublease Consent will promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, 
general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; and

(d) The Sublease Consent is reasonably necessary to induce the Company to 
maintain and expand its business operations in the State of New York; and

(e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to approve the Sublease 
Consent.
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Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to grant the 
Sublease Consent, subject to the satisfaction of the conditions to sublease contained in the 
Leaseback Agreement and review by counsel of the form of the sublease agreement to confirm 
inclusion of the Agency’s standard sublease provisions.

Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to to do all things necessary or appropriate 
for the accomplishment of the Sublease Consent, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency 
with respect to such Sublease Consent are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 4.  

(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or any member of 
the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver such 
documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, necessary or 
appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution. The execution thereof by 
the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director or any member of the Agency shall constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval.

(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or member of the 
Agency are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Leaseback 
Agreement).

Section 5.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 
directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or 
provided for by the Sublease Consent, and to execute and deliver all such additional 
certificates, instruments and documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all 
such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or 
agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to 
cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the 
Sublease Consent binding upon the Agency.

Section 6.   This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Agency, 
including the resolutions contained therein, held on December 8, 2023 with the original thereof 
on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the 
Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the 
same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of December 8, 2023.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:___________________________________
     Shawna M. Papale, Secretary
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Resolution Consenting to Sublease
ICA Holdings III, LLC
(Indium Woods Park Drive) Facility

Date: December 8, 2023

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) held 
at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on December 8, 2023, the following members of 
the Agency were:
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Members Present – WebEx: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

EDGE Staff Present – WebEx: 

Other Attendees:  

Other Attendees – WebEx: 

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that among 
the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters pertaining to 
consenting to the sublease of commercial space at the ICA Holdings III, LLC (Indium Woods 
Park Drive) Facility.

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with the 
following members voting:

Voting Aye Voting Nay



2
16878669.1 12/1/2023

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE SUBLEASE OF COMMERCIAL SPACE WITH 
RESPECT TO THE ICA HOLDINGS III, LLC (INDIUM WOODS PARK DRIVE) 
FACILITY LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF NEW HARTFORD, ONEIDA COUNTY.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York (collectively, 
the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among other things, to assist 
with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Company previously requested the Agency’s assistance in connection 
with acquisition and renovation of a three-story, 124,000± square foot office building and other 
site development work (the “Improvements”) situated on a 13.5± acre parcel of land located at 
301 Woods Park Drive, Town of New Hartford, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”) and 
acquisition and installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all for the purpose of providing a corporate headquarters to support, expand and 
better utilize the current manufacturing facilities operated by the Indium Sublessee in Oneida 
County (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment are referred to collectively as the 
“Facility” and the acquisition, renovation and equipping of the Facility is referred to as the 
“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility to the Company pursuant to a First Amended 
and Restated Leaseback Agreement dated as of November 15, 2022 (the “Leaseback”); and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Leaseback the Agency must consent to the sublease 
of any portion of the Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted to the Agency a request to consent to sublease 
approximately 21,643 square feet of the Facility to a commercial subtenant (the “Sublease 
Consent”), which request identifies the commercial subtenant to the Agency on a confidential 
basis.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as follows:

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines:

(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and

(c) The Sublease Consent will promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, 
general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; and

(d) The Sublease Consent is reasonably necessary to induce the Company to 
maintain and expand its business operations in the State of New York; and

(e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to approve the Sublease 
Consent.
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Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to grant the 
Sublease Consent, subject to the satisfaction of the conditions to sublease contained in the 
Leaseback Agreement and review by counsel of the form of the sublease agreement to confirm 
inclusion of the Agency’s standard sublease provisions.

Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to to do all things necessary or appropriate 
for the accomplishment of the Sublease Consent, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency 
with respect to such Sublease Consent are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 4.  

(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or any member of 
the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver such 
documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, necessary or 
appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution. The execution thereof by 
the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director or any member of the Agency shall constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval.

(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or member of the 
Agency are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Leaseback 
Agreement).

Section 5.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 
directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or 
provided for by the Sublease Consent, and to execute and deliver all such additional 
certificates, instruments and documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all 
such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or 
agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to 
cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the 
Sublease Consent binding upon the Agency.

Section 6.   This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Agency, 
including the resolutions contained therein, held on December 8, 2023 with the original thereof 
on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the 
Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the 
same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of December 8, 2023.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:___________________________________
     Shawna M. Papale, Secretary



                                    
 
 
 

 
TO:       OCIDA Board of Directors 
FROM: Staff 
DATE:   December 1, 2023 
RE:        ECR International OCIDA Benefit History & Shortfall Remedy Payment Reduction Request 
 
ECR is requesting that the Shortfall Remedy be reduced from $154,329.51 to $37,039.08.  An 
analysis of the financial benefits claimed by ECR under the 2020 project (and for historical 
reference, the 2009 project benefits) are provided below. Their request letter and provided backup 
materials are attached. Also included are written communications between the Agency and ECR as 
well as the Job Creation and Recapture Agreement. 

      Retain 
Min 
Std. Shortfall  

    2020 ECR Project Benefits     152 0.8    

    Year 
NYS Sales 
Tax 

Local Sales 
Tax 

Total PILOT 
Benefit Total Benefit 

Jobs 
Reported   121.6    

2020*      $   18,439.68   $      18,439.68  121     0.6  
2021  $  2,156.44   $ 2,560.77   $   45,123.21   $      49,840.42  162     0  
2022      $   43,398.84   $      43,398.84  113     39  
2023      $   42,650.57   $      42,650.57  80      72  
Total      $ 149,612.30   $ 154,329.51           

* 2020 Was transitional year. Paid full County and City taxes.  Only School District was covered under the new  PILOT.    
 

2009 Project - Create 17, Retain 
135 

  
  

Yr Sales Tax 
Benefit 

 
PILOT 

Benefit 

Jobs 
Report Yr PILOT 

Benefit 

Jobs 
Report 

2009 $50,553  0 150 2015 $43,573  156 
2010 $52,972  $66,186  164 2016 $44,101  138 
2011   $77,490  170 2017 $43,840  141 
2012   $82,034  178 2018 $46,183  149 
2013   $84,329  168 2019 $46,189  142 
2014   $87,826  168 Total $621,750    
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November 8, 2023 

 

 

         

 

Oneida County Industrial 

    Development Agency 

Shawna Papale, Executive Director 

584 Phoenix Drive 

Rome, NY 13441 

 

 Re: ECR Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) Straight Lease Transaction 

  with the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 

 

Dear Shawana: 

 

 We are in receipt of your October 30, 2023 letter.  We are disappointed that the Agency 

has opted to proceed in the direction of demanding a recapture of benefits.  However, we would 

like to point out one inaccuracy in the letter (which may have stemmed from a misinterpretation 

of our statement at the October 20, 2023 meeting).  Of the 75 FTE “shortfall”, only a portion 

(37) were shifted to our Dunkirk facility.  The balance of the positions (38) were eliminated due 

to fundamental changes in our industry.  Specifically, widespread “decarbonization” efforts have 

radically altered the market for cast iron boilers.  Attached are several articles along with a letter 

from NEFI to Congressman Nick Langworthy describing this shift.  The Company has become a 

victim of these changes. 

 

 Because only 24% of the required employment (i.e., 37 of 155) was shifted away from 

Oneida County, we would request that only 24% of the benefits be recaptured by the Agency. 

 

 We look forward to resolving this issue with you. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

ECR PROPERTIES, INC. 

 

 

Deborah Dam 

Executive Director of Administration 

 

 

 

cc: Milan K. Tyler, Esq. 

 Mark D. Levitt, Esq. 

Mark Kaucher, MV Edge 
 

debbie.dam
Signature
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118TH CONGRESS 
1ST SESSION H. R. ll 

To prohibit States or local governments from prohibiting the connection, 

reconnection, modification, installation, or expansion of an energy service 

based on the type or source of energy to be delivered, and for other 

purposes. 

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

Mr. LANGWORTHY introduced the following bill; which was referred to the 

Committee on llllllllllllll 

A BILL 
To prohibit States or local governments from prohibiting 

the connection, reconnection, modification, installation, 

or expansion of an energy service based on the type 

or source of energy to be delivered, and for other pur-

poses. 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-1

tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 2

SECTION 1. LIMITATIONS ON REGULATION OF ENERGY 3

CHOICE. 4

(a) IN GENERAL.—No State or local government, or 5

instrumentality or regulatory agency therof, may adopt a 6
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g:\V\F\101023\F101023.010.xml           (887942|7)



2 

law, ordinance, building code, or efficiency standard that 1

prohibits, or has the effect of prohibiting, the connection, 2

reconnection, modification, installation, or expansion of an 3

energy service based on the type or source of energy to 4

be delivered to an end-user of such energy service. 5

(b) DEFINITION.—In this section, the term ‘‘energy’’ 6

includes— 7

(1) natural gas; 8

(2) renewable gas; 9

(3) hydrogen; 10

(4) liquified petroleum gas; 11

(5) renewable liquified petroleum gas; 12

(6) other liquid petroleum products; 13

(7) biomass-based diesel fuels; 14

(8) other liquid petroleum products and renew-15

able fuels; and 16

(9) electricity. 17
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October 19, 2023 

 

The Honorable Nick Langworthy 

U.S. House of Representatives 

1630 Longworth House Office Building 

Washington, D.C. 20515 

 

Via Electronic Mail 

 

Dear Representative Langworthy: 

 

The National Energy & Fuels Institute (NEFI) and New York State Energy Coalition (NYSEC) 

write in support of the Energy Choice Act. 

 

NEFI is a national trade association that represents wholesale and retail distributors of safe and 

reliable liquid heating fuels. NYSEC represents these businesses in New York, where they 

deliver 70-percent of liquid heating fuel volumes consumed annually in the state. In addition to 

fuel delivery, many of our members are full-service home comfort providers that sell, install, and 

maintain residential heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems. Most are small, 

multi-generational family businesses that are actively involved in their local communities and 

care deeply for the wellbeing of their customers. In total, our industry serves 5.5 million 

American homes, including 1.4 million homes in the state of New York.1 

 

Across the nation, state and local governments are actively considering energy and climate 

policies that unduly restrict consumer choice, including in the heating sector. Last month, 25 

state governors pledged to enact a series of policies they say will reduce building emissions, 

including heating fuel and consumer appliance bans and “one size fits all” electrification 

mandates.2 These policies will place significant financial burdens on working families, increase 

utility rates, and cause widespread blackouts during the coldest days of the winter. They ignore 

more immediate, efficient, and cost-effective solutions, such as renewable liquid heating fuels. 

 

Renewable liquid heating fuels are a “plug and play” solution that empowers our members and 

their consumers to help reduce greenhouse gas emissions and regional dependence on foreign 

energy sources without the need for costly conversions or massive new infrastructure 

investments. With support from NYSEC and its members, New York was among the first states 

in the nation to enact a law that now requires every heating oil gallon sold in the state to contain 

at least 5-percent biofuel. This percentage will increase over time, to 10-pecent by 2025 and 20-

percent by 2030. NYSEC is pursuing state legislation to increase that requirement to 50-percent. 

 

 
1 U.S. Census Bureau, 2021 American Community Survey, primary heating fuel by occupied housing units. The five 

year average was used to minimize margin of error. 
2 https://usclimatealliance.org/press-releases/decarbonizing-americas-buildings-sep-2023 



 

 

However, by joining last month’s pledge, Governor Hochel has promised to pursue policies that 

undermine these goals and potentially increase emissions, harm small business energy marketers, 

and restrict consumer choice. Her plans include zero-emissions appliance standards, electric-only 

building codes, and a “clean heat standard” that, if modeled after one being considered in 

Massachusetts, would impose considerable costs on New York homes and businesses. 

 

The Energy Choice Act is common sense policy that allows for market competition and prevents 

state and local governments from picking “winners and losers.” It allows American households 

to choose the heating solutions best suited to their individual needs, local climates, and 

importantly, family budgets. The legislation enables renewable liquid heating fuels to compete, 

build market share, and contribute to emissions reductions in New York and throughout the 

country. By ensuring access to a diverse mix of energy sources, the Energy Choice Act 

strengthens U.S. energy security and grid reliability at a precarious time for our nation, given 

rising inflation and worsening conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East. 

 

We strongly encourage all members of Congress to support this legislation and urge its 

immediate consideration. 

 

Thank you again for your leadership on this issue.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

  

  

Sean Cota, President & CEO    Rocco Lacertosa, CEO 

National Energy & Fuels Institute (NEFI)  New York Energy Coalition (NYSEC) 

 

 

 



Millions of US homes are so 
overheated they open their windows 
in the winter. Why? 
Nineteenth-century technology is finally being phased out in New York City, 
but its past is deeply entwined with American history 

Wilfred Chan 
The Guardian, Mon 6 Nov 2023 07.00 EST 

Until recently, my girlfriend and I lived in a steam-heated apartment 

in Manhattan. A creaky former tenement building, it had no radiators, just 
scalding-hot cast iron pipes that punched through the units like fire poles. The 
pipes terminated a few inches from our ceiling with valves that hissed and 
sputtered, leaking rusty orange water. And they weren’t just heaters, but 
alarms, clanking like pots and pans every morning around 6.45am when the 
boiler flipped on in the basement. 
This 19th-century technology certainly heated our apartment – but far too 
well. So every wintertime we would have to throw the windows wide open just 
to cool down. (My girlfriend enjoyed the contrasting sensations, like ice cream 
on warm pie. “It always felt like a big waste of energy, but it was pleasant in its 
own old-school New York way,” she says.) 
Indeed, steam still heats as many as 80% of New York City’s residential 
multifamily buildings, according to the non-profit Urban Green Council, as 
well as millions of homes across the north-east and midwestern United States 
– what the nonprofit calls the “steam belt”. That means, in a climate
emergency as energy prices spiral, tens of millions of Americans are probably
opening their windows all winter to let cold air in because their homes are too
well heated.

Why on earth is it this way? 

Many of America’s ageing steam systems are oversized or miscalibrated. 
According to a 2019 report by the Urban Green Council, 73% of tenants in 

https://www.theguardian.com/profile/wilfred-chan
https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/new-york
https://www.urbangreencouncil.org/demystifying-steam/


steam-heated buildings are chronically overheated. And while 63% reported 
opening their windows to cool off, the systems are “so unbalanced that other 
residents in these same buildings don’t receive enough heat”, the report wrote. 
But policymakers’ greatest concern is pollution: buildings are by far New York 
City’s largest source of carbon emissions, and 62% of the fuel burned by the 
city’s residential multifamily buildings goes to heating steam, the report 
found. 

Steam heating has stuck around because it’s simple. Photograph: Ryan 
Deberardinis/Alamy 
That could begin to change in a few weeks, when a new energy efficiency law 
in New York takes effect, enacting the first step in what will be a gradual 
phaseout of steam heating. OK, but what took so long? 

Steam, I learned, has stuck around because it’s simple. A basement boiler 
heats water into hot vapor, which naturally rises through the building through 
pipes, usually to coiled radiators, which release the heat into surrounding air. 
The cooled vapor turns back into water, and gravity returns it to the boiler. 
There’s no need for temperature controls in each home because the boiler is 
pre-sized to deliver just the right amount of steam to each radiator. Keep that 
cycle steady, and everyone stays toasty. 

73% of tenants in steam-heated buildings are chronically overheated 
2019 Urban Green Council report 
But generations of neglect have disrupted the careful balance of these systems 
– and now nobody remembers how to fix them. The veteran heating expert
Dan Holohan, who worked as a heating parts salesman in the 1970s,
remembers how contractors were puzzled by steam equipment even back
then. Post-second-world-war buildings had switched to newer methods like



furnaces. Most earlier steam experts were retired or dead, and Holohan 
assumed the technology would die soon, as well. 

Curious, he began digging up old steam heating documentation and “fell in 
love”, he says. “There was so much American history wrapped up in it.” From 
the beginning, the designers of steam heating “were making it up as they went 
along”, he realized. 

Once considered a luxury, and infamous for constantly exploding boilers, 
steam heating enjoyed a massive surge in popularity around the 1918 flu 
pandemic. In response to a “fresh air movement” to fight the virus’s spread, 
crowded tenement buildings installed steam systems that generated enough 
heat that residents could leave their windows open, even in the dead of winter. 
“This is why the radiators are as big as they are,” Holohan explains. “And 
they’re pumping out all this heat to this day.” 

The 1920s and 1930s were what Holohan calls the “golden age” of steam 
heating. Having figured out how to prevent boiler explosions, technicians 
began designing intricate steam systems that were as efficient as they were 
powerful. They realized steam, virtually weightless, was unparalleled in its 
ability to distribute heat to the top of skyscrapers, like the 102-floor Empire 
State Building. That insight holds today: even New York’s One World Trade 
Center, finished in 2014, is heated by steam. 

Steam heating’s problems developed in the 1970s, Holohan says, after the first 
Opec oil embargo. Faced with energy shortages, the government enacted new 
regulations requiring more efficient boilers. Many buildings resized their 
boilers without also replacing their pipes and radiators, throwing the systems 
badly out of balance. More issues arose when buildings replaced old windows 
with better-insulated ones that trapped too much heat. Meanwhile, “the old-
timers were dying, not being able to teach the young people coming in”, 
Holohan says. But landlords, concerned with cost, opted to muddle through 
rather than overhaul their systems, deciding that tenants would just have to 
put up with the banging, gurgling and wild temperature swings. 



A view of the East River Generating Station, which uses oil and natural gas to power 
its boilers to produce electricity and steam, in New York, 2015. Photograph: Justin 
Lane/EPA 
And, for nearly half a century, we (mostly) have. But we’re running out of 
steam. In 2019, New York passed Local Law 97, a measure to curb greenhouse 
gases produced by larger buildings in the city. The law takes effect in two 
months, creating limits that are scheduled to get progressively tougher until 
2050, when the city hopes to have achieved complete carbon neutrality. That 
means steam’s days are officially numbered here. “To fully decarbonize New 
York City, we can’t have fossil fuel combustion in buildings,” says Adam 
Schiabor, research manager for the Urban Green Council. “But we’re talking 
about a complicated and old building stock, so it’s certainly going to take a few 
steps.” 

The long-term goal is to get buildings to switch their steam systems out for 
electric heat pumps – a modern, energy-efficient heating and cooling system 
that transfers heat between indoors and outdoors. (I moved to a new building 
last year that uses heat pumps; the difference in comfort is incredible.) In the 
meantime, Schiabor says that buildings can make “no-brainer upgrades” to 
their old steam systems: vents, temperature sensors and valves that would 
improve performance, while giving residents more control over the 
temperature indoors – and presumably letting them shut their windows in the 
wintertime. Still, some landlords are resistant. A group of homeowners 
recently sued the city over Local Law 97’s “onerous” demands, though a judge 
tossed the suit. 

Holohan, now 73, says he agrees with the new regulations. But he believes 
steam could offer the city the efficiency it’s looking for – if people could just 
learn to use it right. Before he retired, Holohan helped a historic Manhattan 
building tune up its steam system, which was “gorgeous and original to the 
1890s”, with “extremely beautiful” radiators. “The system is absolutely quiet. 
It’s very fast. It’s extremely efficient. We did that, and it gets no attention.” 
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October 30, 2023 

VIA UPS EXPRESS AND EMAIL 

ECR Properties, Inc. 
Attn.: Debra Dam, Executive Director of Administration 
2201 Dwyer Avenue 
Utica NY 13501 

Re: Notice of Intent to Recapture Financial Assistance 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is obligated under General 
Municipal Law to evaluate whether recipients of its financial assistance are achieving the 
investment, job retention or creation, or other objectives of the project indicated in the project 
application and report to New York State that it is taking appropriate action when those 
objectives are not being met. We previously sent notice to ECR Properties, Inc. (the 
“Company”) that the Company and/or ECR International, Inc. (the “Sublessee”) was not 
meeting its Employment Obligation as defined in the Job Creation and Recapture Agreement 
dated as of June 1, 2020 (the “Recapture Agreement”), and provided the Company the 
opportunity to address the Agency before a final determination was made with respect to 
appropriate action.  

The Company addressed the members of the Agency at its October 20, 2023 meeting and 
confirmed that the Company currently employs 80 FTEs at the Facility, which is 75 FTEs 
short of the Employment Obligation of 155 FTEs. This represents a Shortfall as defined in 
the Recapture Agreement. The Company further confirmed that the reduction in employment 
is a result of the Company’s decision to shift jobs to the Company’s facility located in 
Dunkirk, New York. 

Pursuant to Section 5(d) of the Recapture Agreement, “if the Shortfall or Major Shortfall is 
as a result of the Company and/or the Sublessee shifting employment away from Oneida 
County, then the Agency will require the value of the Benefit and the Initial Benefit utilized 
to date to be repaid, with interest (determined as the New York State legal interest rate).” The 
Agency has determined this to be the appropriate remedy. Enclosed is a spreadsheet detailing 
the value of financial assistance to be recaptured. 
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The Agency has also determined to terminate the Leaseback Agreement dated as of June 1, 
2020 (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and the PILOT Agreement dated as of June 1, 2020 (the 
“PILOT Agreement”), effective December 8, 2023. 

The Agency intends to adopt a resolution authorizing this action at its next regular meeting, 
scheduled for December 8, 2023. If you wish to comment on this proposed action, please 
submit a written statement to me not later than November 30, 2023. Should you have any 
questions, please contact Shawna Papale at 315-338-0393 or spapale@mvedge.org. 

Very truly yours, 

Shawna M. Papale 
Executive Director 

SMP/lsr 

c: Mark D. Levitt, Esq. 
Milan K. Tyler, Esq. 



10/30/2023 1:53 PM

Retain Min Std. Shortfall

JOBS 152 0.8

Year
NYS Sales 
Tax

Local Sales 
Tax

County 
Exempt County PILOT

County 
Benefit City Exempt City PILOT City Benefit

School 
Exempt School PILOT

School 
Benefit Total Exempt Total Paid

Total PILOT 
Benefit Total Benefit Jobs Reported 121.6

2020 -$               -$               -$              -$                  -$                 -$               57,299.32$    38,859.64$      18,439.68$   57,299.32$     38,859.64$    18,439.68$    18,439.68$        121 0.6
2021 2,156.44$    2,560.77$  25,773.66$  17,491.96$   8,281.70$    56,766.97$      38,943.35$     17,823.62$   57,299.32$    38,281.43$      19,017.89$   139,839.95$  94,716.74$    45,123.21$    49,840.42$        162 0
2022 26,645.00$  18,289.69$   8,355.31$    57,299.32$      39,531.75$     17,767.57$   56,766.97$    39,491.01$      17,275.96$   140,711.29$  97,312.45$    43,398.84$    43,398.84$        113 39
2023 28,236.33$  19,251.21$   8,985.12$    56,766.97$      40,112.34$     16,654.63$   56,743.43$    39,732.61$      17,010.82$   141,746.73$  99,096.16$    42,650.57$    42,650.57$        80 - Oct 2023 72

Total 80,654.99$  55,032.86$   25,622.13$  170,833.26$   118,587.44$   52,245.82$   228,109.04$  156,364.69$    71,744.35$   479,597.29$  329,984.99$  149,612.30$  154,329.51$  

ECR 2020 Project Benefit Analysis





2201 Dwyer Avenue  
Utica, NY  13501 
www.ecrinternational.com 

Oneida County IDA 
Ms. Shawna Papale 
584 Phoenix Drive 
Rome, NY 13441 

RE:  ECR Job Shortfall 

Dear Shawna, 

When preparing the PILOT program in 2020 ECR International was not aware that our parent 
company BDR Thermea was in transition of selling their shares in ECR International.  BDR had 
decided to put ECR International due to the European market has changed considerably from 
high efficiency condensing boilers to decarbonization and electrification.  New laws and 
regulations in Europe are moving away from these boilers and moving toward Heat Pumps.  
BDR is investing in laboratories to design and develop heat pumps. The North American market 
has not “caught” up with the European market regarding Heat Pumps and decarbonization 
therefore BDR felt the ownership of ECR International did not meet the corporate goals. In 
August of 2021 Terravest Industries out of Quebec purchased 100% of ECR International’s 
shares.  

At the time of the original PILOT ECR International (Utica Division) employed 149 individuals.  
As of the December 31st, 2021, reporting there were 162 employees (permanent and 
temporary).  Terravest has a different business strategy and started by reviewing our product 
offerings and made some decision on which lines we would discontinue to manufacture and 
support.  Our AC line has been discontinued and we will only buy resell AC moving forward.  
Due to the discontinuance of the AC line in April of 2022 ECR International let go 14 salary 
positions.   

Terravest believes in automation and has invested over $2,000,000 in the Dunkirk facility with a 
robotic cell that manufactures our cast iron heat exchangers then feeds the cast iron assembly 
line making it one continuous operation. As of June 19, 2023, all manufacturing of cast iron 
boilers has been transitioned to our Dunkirk Facility.  The Utica facility still manufacturers our 
condensing boilers and is warehouse distribution for our finished goods and parts business.  A 
majority of our salary personnel (65%) are located in the Utica facility, as of today the Utica 
facility is currently employing 75 employees with an additional 19 on layoff status. 

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you need anything further. 

Sincerely, 

Debbie Dam 
Executive Director of Administration 
debbie.dam@ecrinternational.com 
315-731-4137

June 7, 2023

debbie.dam
Signature
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Transcript Document No. 6

JOB CREATION AND RECAPTURE AGREEMENT

THIS JOB CREATION AND RECAPTURE AGREEMENT, dated as of June 1,2020 is
made by and among ECR PROPERTIES, lNC., a New York corporation having an address of
2201 Dwyer Avenue, Utica, New York 13501 (the "Company") and ECR !NTLRNAT;ONAL,
lNC., a New York corporation having an address of 2201 D*yer Avenue, Utica, New york
13501 (thE,.SUbIESSEE,,), ANd ONE]DA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AN
industrial development agency and a public benefit corporation of the State of New york having
its principal office at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New york 13441(the ,,Agency,,).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New york
(the "Act") was duly enacted into law as Chapter 1030 of the Laws of 1969 of the State of New
York (the "State"); and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the creation of industrial development agencies for the
benefit of the several counties, cities, villages and towns in the State and empowers such
agencies, among other things, to acquire, construct, reconstruct, lease, improve, maintain,
equip and sell land and any building or other improvement, and all real and personal properties,
including, but not limited to, machinery and equipment deemed necessary in connection
therewith, whether or not now in existence or under construction, which shall be suitable for
manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial or industrial facilities, including industrial
pollution control facilities, in order to advance job opportunities, health, general proiperity and
the economic welfare of the people of the State and to improve their standlrd of living; and

WHEREAS, the Act further authorizes each such industrial development agency to lease
any or all of its facilities at such rentals and on such other terms and conditioni as it deems
advisable, to issue its bonds for the purpose of carrying out any of its corporate purposes and,
as security for the payment of the principal and redemption price of, and interest on, any such
bonds so issued and any agreements made in connection therewith, to mortgage any or all of its
facilities and to pledge the revenues and receipts from the leasing of its faciliies; and

WHEREAS, the Company leases to the Agency a25+ acre parcel of land located at
2201 Dwyer Avenue, City of Utica (the "Land") and a 2O2,OOOI. square foot building situated on
the Land (the "lmprovements") pursuant to the terms of a Lease Agreement dated as of July 1,
2009 (the "Lease Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Land and lmprovements back to the Company
pursuant to the terms of a Leaseback Agreement dated as of July '1, 2009 (the "Leaseback
Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Company further subleases the Land and the lmprovements to ECR
lnternational, lnc. (the "sublessee")for its operation pursuant to a sublease agreement dated as
of July 1, 2009 (the "sublease Agreement',); and
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WHEREAS, the Sublessee has requested that the Agency undertake a project (the
"Project") consisting of the following: (A) acquisition and installation of equipmeni in the
lmprovements (the "Equipment") and renovation of the lmprovements, all for the purpose of
manufacturing heating products for distribution to the residential and light commercial markets
(the Land, the lmprovements and the Equipment are referred to collectiiely as the "Facility,, andthe renovation and equipping of the lmprovements is referred to as the "project";; 1a; tfregranting of certain "financial assistance" (within the meaning of Section 854(1+) of tfre deneral
Municipal Law) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from sales tax and
reduction of real property tax (collectively, the "Financial Assistance"); and (C) the extension of
the lease to the Company or such other person as may be designated by ti-re Company and
agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, in order to provide such Financial Assistance to the Company and the
Sublessee under th.e Act, the Agency requires, among other things, that the Company, the
Sublessee and the Agency enter into certain lease/leaseback transactions and other associated
agreements, including that certain First Amended and Restated Lease Agreement from the
Company to the Agency (the "First Amended and Restated Lease AgreemJnt") dated of even
date herewith; the First Amended and Restated Leaseback Agreemeit from the Agency to the
Company (the "First Amended and Restated Leaseback A-greement") dated of even date
herewith; the First Amended and Restated Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement between the
Agency and the Company dated of even date herewith (the "First A-mended and Restated
PILOT Agreement") and the First Amended and Restated Environmental Compliance and
lndemnification Agreement among the Agency, the Company and the Sublessee dated of even
date herewith (together with this Agreement, collectively, ihe "Transaction Documents"), and

WHEREAS, the Agency has appointed the Sublessee and its agents and designees as
its agent for the purposes of renovating and equipping the Facility; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the First Amended and Restated Lease Agreement, the
Company has agreed to lease the Facility to the Agency for the Lease Term (dlfined below);
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the First Amended and Restated Leaseback Agreement, the
19"!"V is leasing the Facility back to the Company for an extended period commencing June 1,
2020 and ending April 30, 2031 (the "Lease Term,,); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a First Amendment to Sublease Agreement dated as of June 1,
2020 (lhe "First Sublease Amendment"), the Company is extenAing the sublease of the Facility
to the Sublessee for its operation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Sublease Agreement as amended by the First Sublease
Amendment, the Sublessee agrees to assume ali of the rights and obligattns of the Company
under the Transaction Documents; and

WHEREAS, the Agency wishes to condition the Financial Assistance upon the Company
creating and retaining, or causing the Sublessee to create and retain, certain employment at the
Facility.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration and in consideration of the
Company entering into the First Amended and Restated Lease Agreement and the First
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1. Definitions.

"Agency"

,,AER"

"Benefit"

"Company"

"Cure Period"

"Employment Obligation Term,,

"Employment Obligation,,

..FTE''

Amended and Restated Leaseback
follows:

Agreement, the parties hereby covenant and agree as

shall mean the Oneida County lndustrial DevelopmentAgency.

shall mean the annual compliance report the Company isrequired to provide to the Agency.

shall mean the amount the Company saved by makingpayments in lieu of real 
.nro_Oerty taxes in'a purttrfui,ear. rorexampte, if a Company,s pILOT payment is equal to iSW ofnormal real property taxes, then the Company,s geneiit fo,that year wourd be an amount equar to 25% of normar rearproperty taxes.

shall mean ECR properties, lnc., and its successors and/orassigns.

shall mean the period ending June 30th of the year followingthe Shortfalt or Major Shortfaii.

shall mean the period during which the company is receivinga benefit in the form of rowe"r pryr"nt in rieu of taxes than itsreal estate taxes would be.

shall mean the obtigatiol gf_t!9 Company to create (or causethe Sublessee to create) 3 FTEs at tire Facirity ov tnl *o orthe third year of the First Amended and Restated LeasebackAgreement and to_retain (or cause ihe subtessee to retain;the existing 152 FTEs at irre Facirity and maintain (or causethe sublessee to maintain) a, for the duration of the LeaseTerm as a result of undertai<ing the ir"if ity.

shall mean a fu, time emproyee that has a minimum of thirty-five (35) schedured hours p"r *""i , or any combination oftwo or more paft-time emproyees that work a minimum offifteen (15) scheduled nours per weet, when combinedtogether, constitute the equivarent of a minimum oririrtv-iir"(35) scheduled hours per week, and whose *or[irr""
l?.1li9n is the project facitity. for tfris purpose an employeeshall inctude a teased em[toyee regutariy retaineJ 5, in"Company, the Sublessee, or their respective agents.

means the amount of savings the Company or the Sublesseereceived through the Agency, in the form of exemptions iromsales tax.

"lnitial Benefit"
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"Major Shortfall"

"Minimum Standard"

"Per Employee Amount"

"Shortfall"

"Sublessee"

means any number of FTEs that is less than 50% of the
Employment Obligation.

shall mean an AER that shows the Company and/or the
Sublessee is short of meeting its Employment Obligation by
20%.

shall mean an amount equal to the Benefit for the year after
the year of the Shortfall divided by the Employment
Obligation.

shall mean the difference between the Employment
Obligation and the actual number of FTEs per the AER for the
applicable year.

shall mean ECR lnternational, lnc., and its successors and
assigns.

2. Representations and Covenants. The Company and the Sublessee make the
following representations and covenants as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein
contained:

(a) Each has power to enter into and to execute and deliver this Agreement.

(b) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the provisions of this
Agreement will conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions ofany corporate restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Company or the
Sublessee is a party or by which either is bound, or will constitute a default under any of the
foregoing, or result in the creation or imposition of any lien of any nature upon any of theproperty of the Company or the Sublessee under the terms of any such instrument or
agreement.

(c) The providing of the Facility by the Agency, the leasing thereof by the Agency to
the Company and the subleasing thereof to the Subiessee will not reiult in the abandonment ofan industrial facility in the State of New York, and is reasonably necessary to preserve the
competitive position of the Sublessee in its industry.

(d) The operation of the Facility will conform with all applicable zoning, planning,
building and environmental laws and regulations of governmental authorities having jurisdictio;1
over the Facility, and 

-the Company and the Sublesiee shall each defend, inOemnlty and hold
the Agency harmless from any liability or expenses resulting from any failure by the Cbmpany or
the sublessee to comply with the provisions of this subsection (d).

(e) There is no litigation pending or, to the knowledge of the Company and the
Sublessee, threatened, in any court, either state or federal, to which the Company or the
Sublessee is a party, and in which an adverse result would in any way diminish or adversely
lmna9t on the ability of the Company or the Sublessee to fulfill their resplctive obligations under
this Agreement.
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3 Job Creation and Retention Obliqations The Company's Employment
Obligation shall mean the obligation of the Company to create (or cause the Sublessee to
create) 3 FTEs at the Facility by the end of the third year of the First Amended and Restated
Leaseback Agreement and to retain (or cause the Sublessee to retain) the existing '152 FTEs at
the Facility and maintain (or cause the Sublessee to maintain) all for the duration of the Lease
Term as a result of undertaking the Facility, which is the number of FTEs employed by the
Company and/or the Sublessee in Oneida County and selected by the Agency ur tf,u
Company's obligation. After the expiration of the Employment Obligation Term,lhe borpany
and the Sublessee shall have no further obligation with respect to the Employment Obligation
and shall not be liable for any of the payments described below.

4. Events of Default. An Event of Default shall mean either of the following events:

(a) The failure of the Company and/or the Sublessee to meet the Employment
Obligation shall constitute a default under this Agreement and shall subject the Companyio the
applicable remedies of the Agency set forlh below. The Company shall be deemed to have
failed to satisfy its Employment Obligation if, at such time the Company files its AER, the total
number of FTEs shown on such AER for the applicable Lease Year-is below the Minimum
Standard. The AER shall be filed by the Company to the Agency on or before January 3'l of
each calendar year.during the Employment Obligaiion Term;-provided, however, the Company
is not obligated to file its first AER with the Agency sooner than Janua ry 31,2021.

(b) lf the Company shall exercise its option to terminate early the First Amended and
Restated Leaseback Agreement as set forth in Section 8.1 of the First Amended and Restated
Leaseback Agreement it shall constitute a default under this Agreement and shall subject the
company to the applicable remedies of the Agency set forth below.

5. Remedies.

(a) lf the Company falls below the Minimum Standard, the Agency will notify the
Co_mpany in writing of the Agency's intention to recapture Financial Assistanie. The Company
will have thirty (30) days to respond to the letter and may include a request to appear before ihe
Agency. The Agency will determine, in its sole discretion, if a valid exemption exists and
potentially reduce the remedies described below.

(b) lnitial Shortfall and Shortfall pavments.

(1) lf, during the first five (s) years of the Emptoyment obligation Term a
Company fails to achieve the Minimum Standard, then the -ompany shall
pay to the Agency an amount equal to (a) the per Employee Amount
multiplied by (b) the Shortfail and then muttiptied by (c) 1.5.

(2) lf, after the first five (5) years of the Employment obligation Term a
Company fails to achieve the Minimum Standard, then the Company shall
pay to the Agency an amount equal to (a) the per Employee Amount
multiplied by (b) the Shortfail.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, the company shall not be liable for
paying a shortfall Payment unless the number of FTEs remains a
Shortfall after the expiration of a Cure period.

(3)
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(4)

(1)

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, a shortfail shail not appry where theshortfall is as a resurt or a m-aloicasuatty to or condemnation of thefacility. ln the event of such' ,ujor casuarty or condemnation, theCompany shall have no obligation to ba, the Shortfaf f e"y,iunt

Shortfall
Year 1

Year 2

Year 3
Year 4

Year 5
Year 6

Year 7
Year 8
Year g

Year '10

P"r""rtrq" .t trit
100%

-

90%
80%

-

70%
60%

-

50%
45% i

40% l

-

35% I

30% I

(d)

(2) Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, the company shal not be riabre fora Maior Shortfall Payment unlelss i-l-.,'" nrru"ioi rrr. remains at lessthan 65% of the Emproyment obrigation at the expiration of a curePeriod. The company str-att have the" oppo.trnity at any time before theexpiration of a cure Period to provide addititnal information to theAgency rugrlgilg the Major shortfail, and to request a waiver oramendment of this provision.

(3) Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, a Major shortfail shail not apprywhere the shortfail is as a resurt of ,"rr1or 
"".*tty to or condemnationof the facirity. rn the event of such ma1#;r;;;I; or condemnation, thecompany shail have no obrigation to pay the Majol shortfail payment.

(4) Qualification for a waiver of either (2) or (3) above shail be at the sorediscretion of the Agency.

lf the Shortfail or Major shortfail is as a resurt of the company and/or thesublessee shifting.emproyment away rrom oneio; ar;ri then the Agency wiilrequire the value of the Benefit and the lnitial Benefit utiliz;d to date to be repaid,with interest (determined as the New york State regar inie;st rate).

lf the Agency recaptures rnitiar Benefits or Benefits from a company, the Agencyshall return the recaptured funds promptly to the arelteo taxing jurisdiction,unless otherwise agreed to by the taxing'lurisoiclion,-, ,""oroance with theGeneral Municipal Law.

(c) Maior Shortfall pavment.

lf a company shail ilcyr a Major shortfail, then the company shail pay tothe Agency as an additionar one-time payment an amount as set forth inthe schedule below.

(e)
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0' The Agency retains all rights to impose, dela.y or waive penalties and the right todeviate from these. recapture provisioni..Notwithstanding fl-'is right, the Agency is obligated torecapture New york State sales tax benefits where:

a) The project is not entifled to receive those benefits;

b) The exemptions exceed the amount authorized, or are claimed for unauthorizedproperty or services; or

c) Either the company or the sublessee fails to use property or services in themanner required by the Leaseback Agreement.

The company acknowledges that the value of the sales tax exemptionauthorized by the Agency is iurrenily timited to $ZqS,iZ1.OO.

7 ' Notices' All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be inwriting and shail be sufficiently;i;;and shail be deemed given when (i) maired by Unitedstates registered or certified'm"ail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested or (ii) whendelivered by a commercial overnight Lourie-r that guaiantees next day delivery and provides areceipt, to the Agency or the company, as the case may be, addressed as foilows:

To the Agency:

With a Copy To:

To the Company:

With a Copy To:

To the Sublessee:

-Ol:,!, 
County lndustrial Development Agency

584 Phoenix Drive
Rome, New york 13441
Attn.: Chairman

Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC
501 Main Street
Utica, New York 13501
Attn.: Linda E. Romano, Esq.

ECR Properties, lnc.
2201 Dwyer Avenue
Utica, New york i35O j
Attn.: Paul Totaro, Vice presidentiCFO

Phillips Lytte LLp
One Canalside
125 Main Street
Buffalo, New york 14203-2gTl
Attn.: David Murray, Esq.

ECR lnternational, lnc.
2201 Dwyer Avenue
Utica, New York i3501
Attn.: Paul Totaro, Vice presidentiCFO

Phillips Lytte LLp
One Canalside

With a Copy To:
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125lViain Street
Buffalo, New york 14203-2gg7
Attn.: David Murray, Esq.

8' Binding Effect' This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding
:3:,;rI" 

Agency' the c-mpany ,'io the subtesreu uno treir respectire'succussors and

'10.

9' severabilitv' ln the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid orunenforceable by any court of competent lurisdictiorr, .u.r, holding shall not invalidate or renderunenforceable any other provision hereof.

odifications. This Agreement may not be
;fi::Sit,;l;anseo' 

mo n" J;:,;ruTniJ; #,?",?""1,i:parties hereto.

11' Execu-tion of counteroarts. This Agreement may be executed in several
::#fl:il;""ft:n or wr'icn irrait G ai orrsinat ano aii Jwhich .nair .onstitute but one and the

13. Survt_val_pl_e.Llrge_tt_qls. This Agreement shall survive the performance of theobligationsortnffipaymentsrequiredbySection2'6oftheFirstAmended
and Restated Leaseback 

-Agre"r"ni 
and all indemnities shall survive any termination orexpiration of the First AmenoLd ano Restated rur."ur"k Agreement as to matters occurringduring the period of the company'i *.rprn.y of the Facirity.

lawsofl,t,,,Hffi'ThisAgreementshallbegovernedexclusivelybytheappIicable

[|.n,".The.headingsoftheseveralsectionsinthisAsreement have been pr"prr"d ro,.Gilffi#e 
";';;;'r"#uflli 

jffi HHT:i::l?ff,:r,ffthe meaning or be taken as an interpretation of any prouir.n of this Agreement.

15 Merqer of the Aqencv.

(a) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall prevent the consolidation of theAgency with' or merger of the Agency into] or 
"rrignr"nt by the Agency of its rights andinterests hereunder to, any otner "oooi 

"orporit"-Jni poritic ano puuri-c-in-rirrr"ntarity of thestate of New York or political subdivision thereof *hrcri h", the legal authority to perform theobligations of the Agency r'"t"rnJet, provided that upon any such consolidation, merger orassignment' the due and punctual-performan"" uno-Llservance of ail the agreements andconditions of this Agreement to be kept and perfornred by the ng";"y'lnrtt o" expressryassumed in writing by the public instrumentariiy oi por,ti.r1 suooirirsron'rJsulting from such
ffff?5::3t,llol"'vins such merser or to whici ftre'nfency's rishts and interests hereunder

(b) As of the date of any such consolidation, merger or assignment, the Agency shallgive notice thereof in reasonaure ieiair to ftre Comt;;y,no t" subt6ssee- The Agency sha,promptly furnish to the company and the sublessee sulh additionar information with respect to
#r::;1":?nsolidation' 

me'geior assignment as inu corprny or the subressee reasonabry

a
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16' No Asstffmgfl' This Agreement may not be assigned by the company or thesublessee excepTi't'Ir'e written consent of the Agency, which consent sha, not beunreasonably withheld' Notwithstanding the foregoing, n"o consent from the Agency shalr berequired if an assignment of this Agreement is maie oi't'" company or the subressee to the itsrespective parent' any direct or ind"irect s^Lrbsidiary or iniiiutu of the company or the Sublessee,or a successor to the Company or the subtessee-b;;r; of mergel .Lrrlliortion, corporate
:"r::11:,.rtion, 

or the purchase of arr or substantiarry alr or the company,s or subressee,s

17,
ln the event the Company or

[J:: fl:fl#:? ffi::Xt*1,1i:..i*::1,'1"":1i,",*;#Jr;:;'Jff[:i'J^"J::i#JJ:J?:;I" ;J Tl il,?: : T'"T':::: *::. : " : r d"' # i#J#' Hs?'"1 ; : [:H"? ff : : H:ffi 
":"J::#1"::1fl s'55;:;g:"^",::l1J":::ri,I:?iil;"ilil,#"J"iiltxi#:'""H:[:;iJJJllif iL"S:roff ;ly;:,,'g:*r"f:i:lli"lU#[illl'.,il',T:,?J?1""'i;:.[1?:rr tdt tu [nereloreasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses so incurredl

'18. 
. ln the event any agreementcontainedhereinshould;ereafterwaivedbyanyotherparty,

;:?i"ffi:ifJii*l ilj,?l j:"tie- [a rticurar'o,"u.r, Jo' wa ived ano sr,arr lot be deemed io

19' lnducqment Aqreement. The Transaction Documents represent the entireagreements of the Agency ano-te-company ,;J-;6;rsede the terms-Lf the rnducementAgreement dated aprit zr, zozo o"t*"Jn the same parties.

[signature page follows]
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lN WITNESS WHEREOF' the Aggl:cl the^ company and the subressee have execured
;?,1,"0;"""'ed 

this Job creati;, ;;;Re'capture Rg."e-",it as of the day and year firsr above

ECR PROPERTIES, INC

l')/

By. t,-,'r.t'//
Paul Totaro '

Vice president

ECR INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: i/r,, t /-/' ' it I i \ \
Paul Totaro (

Vice president

9!EIDA CouNrY rNDusrRtAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By
David C. Grow
Chairman

t0



lN wlrNESS WHEREOF, the Agency, the company and tho oublessee have execttted
and delivered this Job Creation and Recapiure Agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

ECR PROPERTIES, INC.

PaulTotaro
Vice President

ECR INTERNATIONAL, INC

Paul Totaro
Vice President

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVETOPMENT AGENCY

David C. Grow
Chairman

By

By:

By:
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TERMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
Board Summary – Dec 8, 2023 

General Project Information 

Company: MVEDGE (Dan oss as sub-tenant) 

Description of Project: Flex Space 
EDGE intends to build, under Phase 1, a 60,000 SF Flex Space building on a portion of a 
17 +/- acre site, owned by EDGE, at the Marcy Nanocenter.  This site has been master- 
planned as a supply chain site to support the semiconductor and advanced electronics 
industry. EDGE has secured all permitting approvals for the project. The site is pre-
permitted to support up to 150,000 SF of supply chain space (Phase 1 building can be 
expanded to 120,000 SF and the site can also support a free standing 30,000 SF building). 
The Flex Space project will provide light manufacturing, office, labs/technology and 
logistics/warehousing space for supply chain companies to support the full build out of the 
Marcy Nanocenter site. The estimated Flex Space construction project cost is $14.48M.  

Danfoss will be responsible for fit out of its 43,982 SF of leased space (racking in warehouse, 
locker rooms, break area, furnace in test/assembly, demising of offices, purchase and 
installation of office furniture workstations, computers, telecom/server and test/assembly 
areas). Test/assembly space will have bench tools for test/assembly of power modules. 
Estimated costs are $10,650,000. 

The remaining 16,018 SF will be shelled and demised for other users related to growing a 
regional ecosystem for the semiconductor, and advanced electronics industry. This space is 
currently not pre-leased although EDGE has had discussions with potential firms and is 
actively marketing the Flex Space Site. 

Type of Facility: Industrial  

Will Project involve the abandonment of a facility?   No 

Request for Financial Assistance 

Sales tax exemption: (estimated value $_61,500) 

Mortgage recording tax exemption: (estimated value $ 66,050) 

PILOT: Tota PILOT payments over 49 years  $  

Length of PILOT: 49 years 
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Affected Tax Jurisdictions: Oneida County, Town of Marcy, Whitesboro Central School 
District, Dunham Public Library, Maynard Fire Department 

Describe PILOT Payments:  PIF PILOT – Deviation from UTEP - See attachment to 
application 

Current real estate taxes: Tax Exempt 

Company Obligations for Financial Assistance – Danfoss 

Current FTEs to be retained: 295  in County: 100% 

FTEs to be created at Facility: 51 in County: 100% 

Date when created FTEs to be filled: 3 years 



(1) UUpdated: 

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
584 Phoenix Drive 

Rome, New York 13441-1405 
338-0393 telephone

338-5694 fax
Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director

Project Name 

Date of Submission 

Mohawk Valley EDGE Flex Space Bldg -Marcy Nanocentere

December 1, 2023





(3) 

Part I:  Applicant Information 

Note:   In responding to the following questions, please keep in mind that the Applicant will  
be  party to all of the documents and is the individual or if entity will be formed which will  
receive the actual financial assistance from the Agency. 

Applicant 

1(a)  Applicant’s Legal Name: 

1(b) Principal Address: 

1(c) Telephone/Facsimile Numbers: 

1(d)  Email Address: 

1(e)  Federal Identification Number: 

1(f) Contact Person: 

1(g)  Is the Applicant a [ ] Corporation: 
If es, Public [  ] Private [ ]
If public, on which exchange is it listed? 

[ ] Subchapter S 
[ ]  Sole Proprietorship 
[ ]  General Partnership 
[ ] Limited Partnership 
[ ] Limited Liability Corporation/Partnership 
[ ] Single-Member LLC (name and EIN below): 

Name

[ ] DISC 
[ ] Other(specify)  

1(h) State of Organization (if applicable) 

 
 

Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corporation (dba

584 Phoenix Dr.

Rome, NY 13441

(315) 338-0393 (Office) Fax (315) 338-5694

sjdimeo@mvedge.org

16 -0874637

Steven J. DiMeo President & CEO

✔

New York

✔



(4) 

Applicant’s Stockholders, Directors and Officers  Partners

2(a)  Provide the following information with respect to with 15% or more in
equity holdings

Percentage of 
Name Address Ownership 

2(b)  Is the Applicant, or any of the individuals listed in 2(a) above, related directly or indirectly  
to any other entity by more than 50% common ownership? , indicate name
of such entity and the relationship. 

2(c) Is the Applicant affiliated with any other entity, directly or indirectly, other than as listed in 
the response to 2(a) above? , please indicate name and relationship of
such other entity and the address thereof: 

Applicant is a New York not-for-profit corporation and is exempt from federal income
taxation under Section 501 (C) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1976, as amended.
No person or entity has any equity holding in applicant.

Applicant is the sole member of 5900 Success Drive Realty LLC, a New York limited liability company. Thus,
applicant is the parent company of 5900 Success Drive Realty, LLC.

✔

✔



(5) 

Applicant’s Counsel and Accountant 

33(a) Applicant’s Attorney 

Name/Title: 

Firm: 

Address: 

Telephone/Fax: 

Email: 

3(b) Applicant’s Accountant 

Name/Title: 

Firm: 

Address: 

Telephone/Fax: 

Email: 

Business Description 

4(a) Describe the nature of your business and principal products and/or services. 
Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

Joseph E. Saunders

Saunders Kahler L.L.P

185 Genesee St

Utica, NY 13501

(315) 733-0419

jsaunders@saunderskahler.com

Nicole E. Chubbuck, CPA Partner

D'Arcangelo & Co. LLP

200 E. Garden St. P.O. Box 4300

Rome, NY 13440

315 336-9220 Fax (315) 336-0836

nchubbuck@darcangelo.cpa

Mohawk Valley EDGE is a private Not-For-Profit regional economic development corporation, that serves Oneida and Herkimer
Counties. Created by a unique collaboration between public and private sector leaders as part of a long-range regional strategy,
EDGE focuses on strengthening existing businesses, attracting new industries, partnering with key stakeholders on workforce
development, job training, talent attraction, and building a vibrant business climate for companies and their employees. Mohawk
Valley EDGE's corporate purposes are set forth in its Certificate of Incorporation. Among the initiatives undertaken by Mohawk
Valley EDGE is its role as lead developer of the Marcy Nanocenter site that is co-located on the SUNY Poly campus in Marcy,
NY. Marcy Nanocenter is a 434+/- acre site consisting of lands owned by EDGE and lands owned by SUNY and then ground
subleased to EDGE. As lead developer, EDGE has spearheaded all planning, permitting, land assemblage, easements,
engineering, site and infrasrtructure improvemens to position this site for semiconductor and advanced electronics development.
Wolfspeed, Inc. has located its 200 mm Silicon Carbide semiconductor manufacturing facility on a portion of the Marcy
Nanocenter site. In addition, Danfoss Silicon Power LLC leases a power module production facility owned by Fort Schuyler
Management Corporation on the SUNY Poly campus (Quad C facility at 330 Technology Drive). Mohawk Valley EDGE is
planning to build and lease a supply chain facility on a 17+/- acre site, owned by EDGE, that is part the Marcy Nanocenter to
help expand the regional ecosystem for the semiconductor and advanced electronics sector that is part of the I-90
Semiconductor corridor in New York State.
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Part II:  Project Information 

55(a) Explain your project in detail. This description should include explanation of all 
activities which will occur due to this project. Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

Reasons for Project 

6(a) Please explain in detail why you want to undertake this project. 

6(b) Why are you requesting the involvement of the Agency in your project? 

The proposed Flex Space project is required to support the Marcy Nanocenter site and build a regional industry ecosystem.
Wolfspeed, Inc. is doubling its investment (from $1 Billion to $2 Billion) for its Mohawk Valley Fab which is expected to
generate interest by supply chain firms and vendors who need to co-locate near Wolfspeed's fab. Ultimately,Wolfspeed will
have 614 direct jobs attached to its Mohawk Valley Fab. Currently, they are approaching 500 jobs at MVF.

Danfoss requires additional facilities to support its continued growth. Their Quad C facility currently has 295 ermployees
and there is interest in looking at future expansion of the Quad C as Danfoss views its Power Module Factory at SUNY Poly
as a strategic growth center for its global operations. In addition, EDGE is in discussions with ESD, SUNY and NY
CREATES regarding acquisition of the SUNY Lands that make up the Marcy Nanocenter site to provide EDGE the ability to
convey fee simple title of lands to prospective end users who are contributing to the growth of the I-90 Semiconductor and
advanced electronics corridor in NYS, and enhancing its position as a global technology hub.

EDGE is seeking OCIDA approval of statutory tax exemptions allowed under the enabling legislative statute that authorized
the creation of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (mortgage recording tax exemption, sales tax
exemptions and approval of the PILOT structure as set forth in the Agreement Approving PILOT Terms and Alllocating
PILOT Payments executed in October 2013 ( the "PILOT Allocation Agreement") by and between OCIDA, Mohawk Valley
EDGE and all of the affected taxing jurisdictions (Oneida County, Town of Marcy, Whitesboro Central School District,
Maynard Fire Department, and Dunham Library), that covers the Marcy Nanocenter site. The aforementioned PILOT
Allocation Agreement establishes the methodology for calculating annual PILOT obligations based on the type of space
being built as part of the Marcy Nanocenter project, and includes the portion of the annual PILOT to be remitted to the
affected taxing jurisdictions plus a 2% annual host payment to the town of Marcy. The remainder is reserved for Marcy
Nanocenter project related purposes and will be deposited into the SUNYIT Project Development Fund and used by EDGE
to offset EDGE project related debt financing on the project and support other future project related purposes as authorized
under the PILOT Allocation Agreement. Attached is an exhibit that outlines the methodology for determing the annual
PILOT obligation on all of the Phase 1 Flex space with a breakout showing monies that would be due and owing by
Danfoss pursuant to its lease agreement. The balance of PILOT not due from Danfoss is to be paid by the building owner,
EDGE, for any vacant space or by other tenants occcupying the non-Danfoss Space. This estimate is based on 2023 tax
rates and will be updated annually to determine the applicable annual PILOT amount due from Danfoss and others.

EDGE intends to build, under Phase 1, a 60,000 SF Flex Space building on a portion of a 17 +/-
acre site, owned by EDGE, at the Marcy Nanocenter. This site has been master planned as a
supply chain site to support the semiconductor and advanced electronics industry. EDGE has
secured all permittting approvals for the project. The site is pre-permitted to support up to 150,000
SF of supply chain space (Phase 1 building can be expanded to 120,000 SF and the site can also
support a free standing 30,000 SF building). The Flex Space project will provide light
manufacturing, office, labs/technology and logistics/warehousing space for supply chain
companies to support the full build out of the Marcy Nanocenter site. Wolfspeed, Inc. currenly
operates a 200 mm SiC semiconductor mfg facility on a portion of the Marcy Nanocenter site. In
addition, Danfoss Silicon Power LLC leases from Fort Schuyler Management Corporation the
Quad C facility which is situated on the SUNY Polytechnic Institute campus in Marcy. The Quad C
facility consists of 56,000 SF of clean room space, offices and support facilities that Danfoss
leases for its power module factory that supports automotive, industrial and renewable energy
customers. The estimated Flex Space project cost is $14.48M (See Supplemental Sheet).
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6(c)

Yes  No 

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the 
Agency,  then provide a statement in the space provided
below indicating why the should :

How will the Applicant’s plans be affected or scaled back if Agency approval is not granted? 

6(d) Is the proposed project reasonably necessary to discourage the Applicant from removing 
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State of New York? 
[ ]Yes  [     ] No If es, please explain briefly.

6(e) Will financing by the Agency result in the removal or abandonment of a plant or other 
facility of the applicant or any related entity presently located in another area of New York 
State? 
[     ] Yes     [     ] No 

If es, is the proposed project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive
position of the Applicant in its respective industry?   [     ]  Yes     [     ]  No 

If es, please provide a statement and evidence supporting the same. Include the name
of all taxing jurisdictions in which the abandoned facility or plant lies, and 
whether Applicant has had any discussions with said taxing jurisdictions 
regarding the abandonment. Please provide as much detail as possible. 

This project would not move forward without OCIDA benefits and grant funds per the project budget. Construction
inflation and the interest rate environment is a major barrier. Without OCIDA benefits and public grants to mitigate high
construction costs and current interest rates this project would be unable to move forward. There is also a lack of
modern single story space in the region forcing Wolfspeed & Danfoss to look at space outside the region. Without
modern single story floor space built in support of the Marcy Nanocenter site, Wolfspeed, Danfoss and other
semiconductor and advanced electronics companies will be forced to look outside the Utica-Rome MSA to meet their
flex space requirements. Continued on supplemental sheet.

Project will not move forward, which could diminish Danfoss's long term growth plans for its operations at SUNY Poly
and preclude supply chain opportunities and the future build out of the balance of the Marcy Nanocenter site that would
inhibit the ability to attract other end users looking to co-locate at Marcy Nanocenter. The Flex Space site's proximity to
Wolfspeed and Danfoss Silicon Power LLC is a major benefit in supporting additional investment opportunities and
helping to expand the regional semiconductor and advanced electronics ecosystem.

Operations at the Quad C are essential to Danfoss' current and future operations. The Flex Space development option
enhances the company's operations and facilitates the addition of additional functions to be co-located in Oneida
County. With Danfoss's acquisition of Semikron there exists the opportunity to consolidate other Semikron functions into
The Marcy Nanocenter/Quad C site over and above the projected jobs forecast to be created.

✔

✔

✔

NA
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6(f) Has the Applicant or any related entity previously secured financial assistance in Oneida 
County (whether through the Agency, the Empire State Development Corporation, or any 
other entity) ?    [   ] Yes      [     ] No 

If es, please explain (indicate date of benefit, location of facility and outstanding
balance). 

6(g) Has the Applicant or any related entity secured financial assistance anywhere within the 
United States within the last 90 days or does the Applicant or any related entity anticipate 
receiving financial assistance within the next 90 days?     [   ]  Yes      [     ] No 
If es, please explain.

6(h) Check all categories best describing the 

Manufacturing

Industrial Assembly or Service

Back office operations 

Research and Development

Technology/Cybersecurity 

Warehousing 

Commercial or Recreational

Retail 

ercentage of sq. footage 
each use (if more than one category): 

 Residential housing (specify) 

 Pollution Control (specify) 

 Environmental (e.g., Brownfield) (specify) 

Other (specif )specifff )Other (s

NA

NA

NA

NA

EDGE is lead developer of the Marcy Nanocenter site which did receive various grants for planning, permitting, site
assemblage, easements, engineering, site development and infrastructure improvements through ESD, DASNY,
OCIDA, Oneida County, Mohawk Valley EDGE and debt financing arranged by MV EDGE. NYS provided various
incentives to support Wolfdpeed's 200 mmm SiC semiconductor manufacturing expansion, and NYS through Fort
Schuyler Management Corporation built the Quad C facility that is leased to Danfoss Silicon Power LLC.

See breakout of project budget and source of grants under 12 (d)

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

17

25

58



6(i) Check all categories best describing the scope of the project: 
[ ] Acquisition of land 

[ ] Acquisition of existing building 

[ ] Renovations to existing building 

[ ] Construction of addition to existing building 

[ ] Demolition of existing building or 

[ ] Construction of a new building 

[ ] Acquisition of machinery and/or equipment 

[ ] Installation of machinery and/or equipment 

[ ] Other (specify) 

6(j)   Please indicate the financial assistance you are requesting of the Agency, and provide  
the estimated value of said assistance. Attach a sheet labeled Annual PILOT that shows 
the annual utilization of the Real Property Tax Abatement by year and by 
taxing jurisdiction .

Assistance

[ ] Real Property Tax Abatement

Estimated Value

[ ] Mortgage Tax Exemption $ 

Amount of mortgage: $  

[ ] Sales and Use Tax Exemption ** $  

Value of goods/services to be exempted from sales tax: $ 

[ ] Issuance by the Agency of Tax Exempt Bonds $

Is the financial assistance requested by the Applicant consistent with the IDA’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy? Yes No 

If , please provide a written statement describing the financial assistance being requested
and detailing the reasons the IDA should consider deviating from its Policy. 

**  

✔

✔

✔

0

66,060

8,808,000

61,250

700,000

NA

Flex Space Project and proposed PILOT is based on the Agreement Approving PILOT Terms and Allocating PILOT
Payments executed in October 2013 that encompasses all of the Marcy Nanocenter site . Attached is the estimated
annual PILOT obligation on the Phase 1 Flex Space Building using the combined Tax rate for the affected taxing
jurisdictions based on the 2023 tax rate (tax rate to be adjusted annually). The calculation of the annual PILOT will vary
from year based on the combined tax rate for each year of the PILOT. Est. total payments over 49 years: $ 8,587,378

✔

✔

✔

✔

$ 127,310
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Part III: Facility Information 

77(a) Street Address of Facility: 

7(b) City, Town and/or Village (list ALL incorporated municipalities): 

7(c) School District: 

Attach copies of the most recent real property tax bills. Include  copies  for 
all taxing jurisdictions for the site/ facility that IDA assistance is being sought. 

Facility (Physical Information) If multiple locations please provide information on 
all. 

7( ) For what purpose was the facility site most recently used (i.e., light manufacturing, heavy 
manufacturing, assembly, etc.)? 

7( ) Zoning Classification of location of the project: 

7( ) Please describe in detail the facility to be acquired, constructed or renovated (including
number of buildings, square footage, number of floors, type of construction,) and attach 
plot plans, photos or renderings, if available. If there are infrastructure improvements 
(water, sewer, gas, electrical, etc.) please provide details along with who will carry out 
those improvements and who will fund them. Please be as specific as possible. 

2049 Wafer Loop Road, Marcy, NY

Town of Marcy

Whitesboro

Planned Development Nanotechnology Development

Phase 1 project consists of construction of a 60,261 SF one-story Flex Space building that will be demised for light
manufacturing, general administrative offices, and logistics/warehousing, including loading docks for in bound raw
materialand outbound distribution of finished product. The Phase 1 building is expandable to 120,000 SF with the
ability to add a free standing 30,000 SF building on the balance of the 17 +/- acre site. Danfoss Silicon Power LLC is
expected to lease 73.4% of the building for test/asssembly, offices and logistics/warehousing. The balance of the
space will be shelled and demised as additional tenants are secured in support of Marcy Nanocenter. EDGE retained
VIP for A/E support and a Design Build Agreement to oversee design, bidding and construction of the project. The
Flex Space site has all permiting approvals from the Town of Marcy Planning Board. The project requires extension of
laterals for water and sanitary sewer connecfions, extension of a natural gas line, stormwater improvements (e.g.,
construction of stormwater detention facilities pursuant to the SPDES permit issued by NYSDEC, and an
underground electrical interconnect from the EDGE substation to the Flex Space Building that EDGE will build and
own.

Site is vacant land that EDGE acquired in 2011.
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7( ) Has construction or renovation commenced? [ ]Yes [ ]No 

If es, please describe the work in detail that has been undertaken to date, including the
date of commencement. 

If o, indicate the estimated dates of commencement and completion:

ommencement:

Construction completion: 

7( ) Will the construction or operation of the facility or any activity which will occur at the
site

Yes No N/A 

If Yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the planning department approval  
along with the related State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) determination. If no, 
please provide the status of approval: 

7( ) Will the project have a significant effect on the environment? [ ]No 

Important: please attach and sign Part 1 of either the the long or short Environmental 
Assessment Form to this Application. 

years 7( ) What is the useful life of the facility?

7( ) Is the site in a former Empire Zone? [ ]Yes [ ]No

]Yes [ No 
If es, which Empire Zone:
Is project located in a Federal HUB Zone or distressed area: [ 
Provide detail. 

January 2024

May 2025

✔

✔

40+

A site grading contract was issued and A/E Design/Build Scope with VIP Architecture. Base Bldg plans are ready for
bidding for building shell. EDGE/VIP need to complete design for demising of tenant space.

✔

✔

✔

✔

See attached.
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Part V: Retail Project Questionnaire
To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the 
Agency requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers 
personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase 
services. 

. Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from
equity or other sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in
making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

Yes or If the answer is , please continue .
 , 

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily 
engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 
1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit 
the Project. 

. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the
project? %. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the
remainder of th  retail determination and proceed to next section

If the answer to A is Yes AND the answer to B is greater than 33.33%, indicate
which of the following questions below apply to the project: 

1. Will the project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation Yes      No 

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from
outside Oneida County?

Yes  No 

If yes, please provide a third party market analysis or other documentation supporting 
your response. 

3. Is the predominant purpose of the project to make available goods or services which
would not, but for the project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the
municipality within which the proposed project would be located because of a lack of
reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such goods or services?

Yes  No 

If yes, please provide a third party market analysis that demonstrates that a majority of 
the project’s customers are expected to come from outside of Oneida County and the 
project will not directly compete with existing businesses located in Oneida County. 

✔
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]

Part V: Facility (Legal Information)

(a) With respect to the present owner of the facility, please give the following
information and provide a brief statement regarding the status of the acquisition. 

(Note:    the present owner is not necessarily the user of the facility, but that party which holds legal title to the facility.) 

Legal Name: 

Address: 

Telephone: 

Balance of Mortgage: 

Holder of Mortgage: 

If the Applicant is not the present owner of the facility, please attach any 
written agreements and contracts concerning the acquisition of the real property 
and/or equipment. 

(b) Is there a legal relationship, directly or indirectly, by virtue of common control  or through
related persons, between the Applicant and the present owner of the facility? 
[   ]  Yes   [   ] No.  If es, please explain.

(c) Will a related real estate holding company, partnership or other entity, be involved  in the
ownership structure of the transaction? 
[   ]  Yes   [      No. IIf es, please explain.

(d) Will the title owner of the facility/property also be the user of the facility?
[ ] Yes [ ]  No  If , please explain.

Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corp. (dba Moh

584 Phoenix Drive

Rome, NY 13441

(315) 338-0393

0

NA

Mohawk Valley EDGE is fee title owner of the 17 +/-acre property
where the proposed supply chain facility is to be located at the
Marcy Nanocenter site.

✔

✔

✔

EDGE owns land and will be project developer/bldg. owner with leases to Danfoss and other supply chain firms.

Applicant may create a real estte holding company for the pfoject.

EDGE's role is to develop, own,market and lease Flex Space to support expansion of regional semidonductor and
advanced electronics ecosystem.
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(e) Is the Applicant currently a tenant in the facility? [ ]  Yes [ ] No 

(f) Are you planning to use the entire proposed facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No 

If o, please give the following information with respect to tenant(s) which will
remain in the facility after the completion of the project, including the square 
footage the Applicant will occupy: 

Name of Floors Sq Ft  Occupied

(g) Are any of the tenants related to the owner of the facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No  

(h) Will there be any other users utilizing the facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No 
If es, please explain. Provide detail of the contractual arrangement
including any financial exchange for the use of the site or property. 

Part VI: Equipment

(a)  List the principal items or categories of equipment to be acquired as part of the project.
If you are requesting sales tax exemption it is important to be as detailed as possible. (If 
a complete list is not available at time of application, as soon as one is available but prior 
to final authorizing resolution, please submit a detailed inventory of said equipment to be 
covered.) Attach a sheet if needed. 

(b)  Please provide a brief description of any equipment which has already been purchased
or ordered, attach all invoices and purchase orders, list amounts paid and dates of 
expected delivery.  Attach a sheet if needed. 

(c) What is the useful life of the equipment? years 7 to 10 years

Danfoss Silicon Power LLC

16,018 SF is shelled and will be demised for other users related to growing a regional ecosystem for the semiconductor,and
advanced electronics industry This space is currently not pre-leased although EDGE has had discussions with potential firms
and is actively marketing the Flex Space Site.

✔

✔

✔

✔

Danfoss will be responsible for fit out of its leased space (racking in warehouse, locker rooms, break area, furnace in
test/assembly, demising of offices, purchase and installation of office furniture work stations, computers,telecom/server
and test/assembly areas). Test/assembly space will have bench tools for test/assembly of power modules.

To be provided by Danfoss.

1 44,243 Advanced electronics system integrator

Vacant to be leased to others 1 16,018 Shelled for future use and leasing



assistance is granted

(1 )

Number of Jobs 
BEFORE Project 

Location 
1 

Location 
2 

Location 
3 

Location 
4 

Location 
5 

Total 
Address in NYS 

Full-Time Company 
Full-Time Independent 
Contractors 
Full-Time Leased 

Total Full-Time BEFORE 

Part-Time Company 
Part-Time Independent 
Contractors 
Part-Time Leased 

Total Part-Time BEFORE 

Continued on next page

Part : Employment Information

((a) Estimate how many construction jobs will be created or retained as a result of this project.

Will the project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

No Yes  If es, explain

1 ( ) Job Information related to project ***
Estimate below how many jobs will be created and retained as a result of this project, if OCIDA 

Total BEFORE

Yes  No If es, explain 

180

✔

Danfoss currently has 295 jobs at its SUNY Poly power module factory with the Flex space expansion and growth at its
Quad C Power Module Facilty, Danfoss expects to create an additional 51 jobs, Project will add both logistics and
manufacturing jobs.

Since June 2022, Danfoss Silicon Power LLC has addded 200 + jobs.

330 
Technology 
Drive, Marcy, 
NY

240 0 240

25 0 25

30 0 30

295 0 295

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

295 0 295

✔

2049 Wafer 
Loop Rd. 
Marcy, NY
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Number of Jobs AFTER 
Project (within 3 years 
of project completion) 

Location 
1 

Location 
2 

Location 
3 

Location 
4 

Location 
5 

Total 
Full-time Company 
Full-Time Independent 
Contractors 
Full-Time Leased 

Total Full-Time AFTER 

Part-Time Company 
Part-Time Independent 
Contractors 

Part-Time Leased 

Total Part-Time  AFTER

Estimate the number of 
residents from the 
Labor Market Area** in 
which the Project is 
located that will fill the 

 within
three years of project 
completion 

Location 
1 

Location 
2 

Location 
3 

Location 
4 

Location 
5 

Total 
Full-Time 

Part-Time
Total AFTER 

Continued on next page

Total AFTER 

260 28 288

28 0 28

30 0 30

318 28 346

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

318 28 346

23 28 51

23 28 51

Independent Contactor jobs reflect Danfoss Silicon Power LLC third party agreement with a facility
management firm for the Quad C facility and additional support that will result with its Flex Space
manufacturing/logistics/warehouse space. Danfosss leased employees are through an employee agency
many of whom eventually become permanent employees,
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Retained Jobs Created Jobs 

SALARY AND BENEFITS 
Average 
Annual 
Salary

Average 
Fringe 

Benefits 
(as a 

percentage of 
wages) 

Averag
Annual 
Salary

Average 
Fringe 

Benefits 
(as a 

percentage 
of wages) 

Management $ % $ % 
Administrative $ % $ % 
Production $ % $ % 
Independent Contractor $ % $ % 
Other $ % $ % 
Overall Weighted Average $ % $ % 

*** By statute, Agency staff must project the number of Full-Time Jobs that would be 
retained and created if the request for Financial Assistance is granted. 

11 ( ) Please list N  codes for the jobs affiliated with this project:

126,000 28 126,000 28

112,044 28 112,044 28

68,569 28 68,569 28

83,000 0 0 0

128,158 28 28

81,576 28 87,112 28

semiconductor and other electronic component devices Electrical Equipment Mfg.

NAICS 33635 Motor Vehicle Transmission and Power Train Parts Manufacturing
NACIS 33599 All Other Electrical Equipment and Component ManufacturingT
NACIS 33531 Electrical Equipment Mfg



( )

Part : Estimated Project Cost and Financing

1 (a) List the costs necessary for the facility.

A

Legal Fees ( plicant )

Other )

Subtotal

Total Project Cost

1

Acquisition

11,355,604

1,553,292

300,000

10,000,000

250,000

100,000

525,000

200,000

759,904

25,000

25,068,800

66,200

25,135,000

Bank Appraisal/Phase 1 ESA
Interim Interest - Construction
Bank Fees/UIDC/MVEDD
Mortgage Recording Tax 0.25%
Title Insurance/Other Costs

$ 12,500
$ 621,104
$ 20,000
$ 22,000
$ 84,280



( )

11 ( ) Sources of Funds for Project Costs

Bank Financing: $

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits) $

$

$

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable) 

Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable) 

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal 
credits ) $

Identify each state and federal grant/credit:

Total Sources off Funds for Projectt Costs: $

Real Estate Taxes
1 (a) For each tax parcel which comprises the facility, please
provide the following information 

Tax Map  #

Current

Assess

Current Current

Ass

8,808,000

2,000,000

1,272,000

1,000,000

1,400,000

4,272,000

14,480,000

$423,400 0 $423,400 0 $5,500,000

✔

✔

Oneida County Grant

ESD Fast NY

ESD CFA Award
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11 ( )  Address of Receiver of Town and/or Village Taxes :

1 ( )   Address of Receiver of School Taxes:

Please complete  Cost/Benefit Analysis form attach to this
Application. 

Gina M. Schillaci, Town Clerk/Tax Collector

Town of Marcy PO Box 220

Marcy NY 13403

Whitesboro Central School District Receiver of Taxes C/O T

8539 Clark Mills Rd.

Whitesboro, NY 13492

✔
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Agency Fee Schedule 

Commitment Fee: $1,000 – due following the initial inducement but prior to scheduling of the 
public hearing; this amount is non-refundable if the applicant fails to close on the project before 
the IDA.  Upon closing with the IDA this amount is applied to the closing fees. 

Bond Fees: ½ of 1% of total bond amount 

IDA Agency Fee: PILOT, Mortgage Recording Exemption, Sales Tax Exemption: 
Up to a $1.0 Million project - $5,000
Above $1.0 Million project up to $10.0 Million project – ½ of 1% of total project
cost.
Above $10.0 Million project – ½ of 1% of total project cost up to $10.0 Million plus
incremental increase of ¼ of 1% of total project above $10.0 Million.

Transaction Counsel/Agency Counsel fee: 
Set by Bond/Transaction Counsel based upon the nature and complexity of the transaction. 
This applies to bond and non-bond transactions (leasebacks, sale-leasebacks, etc). 

Transaction Counsel/Agency Counsel fees for bond transactions typically will not exceed 2% of 
the bond amount or project costs. Transaction Counsel/Agency Counsel fees for a sale- 
leaseback/lease-leaseback transaction are typically $8,500 to $10,000 if no commercial 
financing is involved or $10,000 to $12,000 if commercial financing is involved. You will receive 
an engagement letter with a quote based upon the scope of your project. 

Annual Fee: 
For the term in which the property remains in the IDA’s name, an annual lease payment is due 
in the amount of $ 0 . The first payment is due at closing and
subsequent payments are due each January 1.  For annual fees not paid and delinquent, a 
late charge of $50 per month will be levied until such time the fee plus late charges are paid. 

Other fees: 
If Applicant requests the IDA enter into subsequent transactions following closing (i.e., a facility 
refinance), the IDA will charge a closing fee equal to 1/8 of one percent of the total reissuance, 
redemption, new or revised mortgage, refinancing, spreading agreement or other transaction 
with a minimum payment due of $500. Applicant will also be responsible to pay any legal fees 

the IDA incurs in connection with said transaction
.
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REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATION BY APPLICANT 

The undersigned requests that this Application be submitted for review to the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) and its Board of Directors. 

Approval of the Application can be granted solely by this Agency’s Board of Directors. The undersigned 
acknowledges that Applicant shall be responsible for all costs incurred by the Agency and its counsel in 
connection with the attendant negotiations whether or not the transaction is carried to a successful 
conclusion. 

The Applicant further understands and agrees with the Agency as follows: 

1. Annual Sales Tax Filings. In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal
Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales tax exemptions as
part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General
Municipal Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State Department
of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance,
describing the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or
subcontractors retained by the Applicant.

2. Annual Employment, Tax Exemption & Bond Status Reports. The Applicant understands and
agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees
to file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports regarding the number of
people employed at the project site as well as tax exemption benefits received with the action of the
Agency. For Applicants not responding to the Agency’s request for reports by the stated due date,   a
$500 late fee will charged to the Applicant for each 30-day period the report is late beyond the due
date, up until the time the report is submitted. Failure to provide such reports as provided in the
transaction documents will be an Event of Default under the Lease (or Leaseback) Agreement
between the Agency and Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to provide the Agency with an
Annual Employment, Tax Exemption & Bond Status Report may be reported to Agency board
members, said report being an agenda item subject to the Open Meetings  Law.

3. Absence of Conflict of Interest. The Applicant has consulted the Agency website of the list of the
Agency members, officers and employees of the Agency. No member, officer, or employee of the
Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, in any transaction contemplated by this
Application, except as herein after described (if none, state “none”):

4. Hold Harmless. Applicant hereby releases the Agency and its members, officers, servants, agents
and employees from, agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend
and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred
by (A) the Agency’s examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the attached
Application, regardless of whether or not the Application or the Project described therein or the tax
exemptions and other assistance requested therein are favorably acted upon by the Agency, (B) the
Agency’s acquisition, construction and/or installation of the Project described therein and (C) any
further action taken by the Agency with respect to the Project; including without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, all causes of action and attorneys’ fees and any other expenses incurred in
defending any suits or actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. If, for any reason,
the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate necessary negotiations, or fails, within a reasonable
or specified period of time, to take reasonable, proper or requested action, or withdraws, abandons,
cancels or neglects the Application, or if the Agency or the Applicant are unable to reach final
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agreement with respect to the Project, then, and in the event, upon presentation of an invoice 
itemizing the same, the Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents or assigns, all costs incurred by 
the Agency in the processing of the Application, including attorneys’ fees, if any. 

5. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency has disclosed that the actions and activities of the
Agency are subject to the Public Authorities Accountability Act signed into law January 13, 2006 as
Chapter 766 of the 2005 Laws of the State of New York.

6. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of Information
Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records related to this
application are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to limited statutory
exclusions.

7. The Applicant acknowledges that it has been provided with a copy of the Agency’s recapture policy
(the “Recapture Policy”). The Applicant covenants and agrees that it fully understands that the
Recapture Policy is applicable to the Project that is the subject of this Application, and that the
Agency will implement the Recapture Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant
further covenants and agrees that its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial
assistance and/or recapture of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted.

8. The Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the  New  York
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is provided for
the proposed Project:

§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in
respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or
manufacturing  plant of  the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of
the state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant
located within the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency
shall determine on the basis of the application before it that the project is reasonably
necessary to discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a
location outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of
the project occupant  in its respective industry.

9. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving Financial
Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable local, state and
federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

10. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or knowingly
misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial Assistance and the
reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption claimed by reason of the
Agency’s involvement the Project.

11. The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the
Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the New York General
Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and Section 862(1) of the
New York General Municipal Law.

12. The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of the Applicant acknowledge
that the Agency will rely on the representations made herein when acting on this Application and
hereby represent that the statements made herein do not contain any untrue statement of a  material
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Dec 4 2023
COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Required by §859-a(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: MVEDGE

Description of Project: New onstruction & equipping facility
"Flex Space"

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of Danfoss Silicon Power LLC
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant:

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project: May-25

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds

X Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
X Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement
X Real Property Tax Abatement

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY



C

Project Costs
Land Acquisition -$  
Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION -$  
Existing Building(S) RENOVATION -$  
NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION 11,355,604$         
Installation Costs 100,000$              
Site Preparation/Parking Lot Construction 1,553,292$           
Machinery & Equipment (other than furniture) 10,300,000$         
Furniture & Fixtures 250,000$              
Architectural & Engineering 525,000$              
Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel) 200,000$              
Financial (all costs related to project financing) 759,904$              
Permits 25,000$  
Other
Agency Fee 66,200$  
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT 25,135,000$         

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount: 4,272,000$           
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount: 8,808,000$           



Company Information

Existing Jobs 295 81,576$  
Created Jobs FTE  (over three years) 51 87,112$  
Retained Jobs 295 81,576$  

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant 81,576$  
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25,000$  
Average of Construction Jobs 32,000$  

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 15 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 65

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)
Total Earnings Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 13,328,136$         566,446$  
Existing 72,194,760$         3,068,277$  

Indirect Jobs
Created 9,562,500$           406,406$  
Existing 55,312,500$         2,350,781$  

Construction - only one year
Person Years 2,081,423$           88,460$  

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Yr Period) 152,479,319$       6,480,371$  

Average Salary of these 
Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% 4,798,129$  467,818$  
Existing 0.36 25,990,114$  2,534,036$             

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 3,442,500$  335,644$  
Existing 0.36 19,912,500$  1,941,469$             

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 749,312$  73,058$  

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES 54,892,555$  5,352,024$             

Municipality
31.585129 W'Boro & DunhamLib 23-24
1.157928 Hway&SewerGen 2024
8.450875 Oneida 2023

Total Rate: 41.193932
Real Property Taxes Paid: 969,211$              

COSTS: IDA BENEFITS

Real Property Taxes Abatement

Total PILOT 
payments over 49 
years est. 
$

Mortgage Tax Abated (.75%) 66,060$  
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Construction Period (8.75%) 61,250$  

Total: 127,310$  

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for County:

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.
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Transcript Document No. [   ]

Inducement Resolution
EDGE Flex Space Facility at Marcy Nanocenter

RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION 
TOWARD APPOINTING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
GROWTH ENTERPRISES CORPORATION, THE 
PRINCIPALS OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GROWTH 
ENTERPRISES CORPORATION, AND/OR AN ENTITY 
FORMED OR TO BE FORMED ON BEHALF OF ANY OF 
THE FOREGOING AS AGENT OF THE AGENCY IN 
CONNECTION WITH A LEASE-LEASEBACK
TRANSACTION, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT AND 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT. 

WHEREAS, Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corporation, on behalf 
of itself and its principals (collectively, the “Company” and sometimes referred to as 
‘EDGE”), or an entity to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing, has applied to the 
Agency to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist in construction of a 
60,261± square foot single story Flex Space building including loading docks and all 
utilities and infrastructure to support the same (collectively, the “Improvements”) on a 
17± acre portion of a parcel of land situate at 2049 Wafer Loop Road in the Town of 
Marcy, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); and acquisition and installation of 
furniture, fixtures and equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), to provide light 
manufacturing, office, labs/technology and logistics/warehousing space for supply chain 
companies for the purpose of supporting the semiconductor and advanced electronics 
industry and in furtherance of the master plan for the Marcy Nanocenter site (the Land, 
the Improvements and the Equipment is referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the 
construction and equipping of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency, pursuant to 
Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York and Chapter 372 of 
the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York, as may be amended from time to time 
(collectively, the “Act”) and the Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company
pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”); and
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WHEREAS, the Company will further sublease 44,243± square feet of the 
Facility to Danfoss Silicon Power LLC (the “Sublessee”) for its operation, to support the 
continued growth of the Sublessee at the Quad C facility at SUNY Poly (the “Quad C 
Faciltiy”); and

WHEREAS, the Company intends to further sublease the remaining 16,018± 
square feet of the Facility to another user or users relating to growing a regional 
ecosystem for the semiconductor and advanced electronic industry; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; 
and

WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance in 
the form of exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, exemptions from sales and use 
taxes on materials and/or Equipment used or incorporated in the Facility, and payment
of real property taxes consistent with the Agreement Approving PILOT Terms and 
Allocating PILOT Payments dated as of October 1, 2013 by and among the Agency, the 
County of Oneida, Whitesboro Central School District, the Town of Marcy, Maynard Fire 
District, Dunham Public Library and EDGE (sometimes hereinafter referred to as the 
“PILOT Allocation Agreement”), conditioned upon EDGE creating and retaining (or 
causing the Sublessee to create and retain) certain employment levels at the Facility
and at the Quad C Facility, which financial assistance represents a deviation from the 
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (the “Policy”), to be more particularly described 
in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the 
transactions described herein; and

WHEREAS, the value of the proposed financial assistance is described below:

Sales and use tax exemption valued at $61,250.00
Mortgage recording tax exemptions valued at $66,060.00

In accordance with the PILOT Allocation Agreement and based upon existing 
projections, the Company shall pay approximately $11,630,148.00 in real 
property taxes over 49 years (which figure may be updated from time to time); 
and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency deviate from its Policy for 
the following reasons:
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1. The nature of the proposed project: The Project consists of the construction of
a modern supply chain site, which is necessary to support and attract continued 
growth at the Marcy Nanocenter site.

2. The nature of the property before the project begins: The Project is situated 
on land that is part of a 400-acre site that has been developed as the “Marcy 
Nanocenter,” the goal of which is to attract advanced nanoelectronic manufacturing. 
The Project is located on a 17± acre portion of land, owned by EDGE, that has been 
master planned as a supply chain site to support the semiconductor and advanced 
electronics industry.

3. The extent to which financial assistance for the properties will create or 
retain permanent, private sector jobs. The Project will support the continued 
growth of Wolfspeed and Danfoss, and has the potential to attract other advanced 
electronics companies to Marcy Nanocenter.

4. Impact of the proposed tax exemptions on affected tax jurisdictions:  The 
PILOT Payments are consistent with the methodology that was agreed upon among 
all taxing jurisdictions in the Agreement Approving PILOT Terms and Allocating 
PILOT Payments dated as of October 1, 2013.

5. Impact on existing and proposed businesses and economic development 
projects in the vicinity: The Flex Space site’s proximity to Wolfspeed and Danfoss 
is a major benefit in supporting additional investment opportunities and helping to 
expand the regional semiconductor and advanced electronics ecosystem. Providing 
opportunity for growth of the Marcy Nanocenter is also expected to further the 
growth in businesses and housing in the region.

6. The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be 
generated:  EDGE and Danfoss have committed to invest over $25,000,000.00 in 
the aggregate into the project.

7. The effect of the proposed project upon the environment: Environmental 
impact has been extensively reviewed and studied. The cost associated with the 
environmental review is a burden, and some of the monies generated under the 
PILOT Allocation Agreement will help cover these costs.

8. The extent to which the proposed project will provide additional sources of 
revenue for municipalities and school districts in which the project is located.
Pursuant to the PILOT Allocation Agreement, each year an ever-increasing portion 
of the PILOT Payments made to the Agency are allocated and paid over by the 
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Agency to the affected taxing jurisdictions (including a 2% community host payment 
to the Town of Marcy).

9. The extent to which redevelopment will provide a benefit (economic or 
otherwise) not otherwise available within the municipality: There is not a Flex 
Space supply chain facility located at the Marcy Nanocenter site or in Oneida 
County. Without a modern supply chain facility on the Marcy Nanocenter site, 
Wolfspeed, Danfoss and other semiconductor and advanced electronics companies 
will be forced to look outside Oneida County to meet their flex space requirements. 

WHEREAS, the Financial Assistance is conditioned upon the Company creating 
and retaining (or causing the Sublessee to create and retain) the following full time 
equivalent (“FTE”) positions: (a) create 28 FTEs at the Facility and 23 FTEs at the Quad 
C Facility prior to the commencement of the third lease year and maintain all for the 
balance of the term of the Leaseback Agreement; and (b) retain 295 FTEs at the Quad 
C Facility for the full term of the Leaseback Agreement, all as a result of the Company 
undertaking the Project (the “Employment Obligation”), and failure to do so may result in 
the termination or recapture of Financial Assistance; and

WHEREAS, EDGE has agreed to undertake certain site work in furtherance of 
the Project (the “EDGE Project Related Improvements”) and to finance a portion of the 
costs of the EDGE Project Related Improvements in furtherance of the Project (the 
“EDGE Project-Related Debt”); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the PILOT Allocation Agreement, EDGE will 
submit a proposed summary of Sources and Uses of Funds for the Project (the 
“Sources and Uses of Funds”) and request the Agency approve EDGE Project-Related 
Debt for the Project; and

WHEREAS, prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback transaction, and the 
granting of any tax benefits, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so that all 
persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the financial assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a lease-
leaseback transaction, and the granting of any tax benefits, and such notice (together 
with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A; 
and

WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B; and
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WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the application of the 
Company and to representations by the Company that the proposed lease-leaseback
transaction is either an inducement to the Company (or the Sublessee) to maintain and 
expand the Facility in the County or is necessary to maintain the competitive position of 
the Company (or the Sublessee) in its industry; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to comply with the requirements of Article 8 of 
the Environmental Conservation Law, the State Environmental Quality Review Act, and 
the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), and 
the Agency constitutes a “State Agency”; and

WHEREAS, the Agency is adopting a SEQR resolution on even date hereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that:

Section 1. (a) The construction and equipping of the Facility and the Agency’s 
financial assistance therefor, will promote job opportunities, health, 
general prosperity and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of 
the County and the people of the State of New York and improve 
their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of 
the Act and the same is, therefore, approved.

(b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 
a lease-leaseback transaction, for the purpose of providing financial 
assistance for the construction and equipping of the Facility, as 
reflected in the Company's application to the Agency and as 
amended from time to time prior to the closing of the lease-
leaseback transaction. 

Section 2.  The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 
substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the lease-
leaseback transaction, and the development of the Facility (the 
"Agreement") are hereby approved.  The Chairman of the Agency
is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and 
deliver the Agreement, with such changes in terms and form as the 
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Chairman shall approve.  The execution thereof by the Chairman 
shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 3.  Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 5.02 of the Agreement
and subject to Agency approval of the EDGE Project-Related Debt, 
the Agency shall assist the Company in its construction and 
equipping of the Facility and will provide Financial Assistance with 
respect thereto.

Section 4.  The Company is herewith and hereby appointed the agent of 
Agency to equip the Facility and undertake the Project. The 
Company is hereby empowered to delegate its status as agent of 
the Agency to agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, 
materialmen, suppliers, vendors and such other parties as the 
Company may choose in order to equip the Facility and undertake 
the Project.  The terms and conditions for the appointment of the 
Company as agent of the Agency for the purposes described in this 
resolution are set forth in the form of the attached letter addressed 
to the Company, marked as Exhibit D to this resolution. The form 
of such letter is incorporated herein by reference and is approved 
and adopted by the Agency, and the Chairman or Executive 
Director of the Agency or any other duly authorized official of the 
Agency are authorized to execute and deliver such letter to the 
Company.  The Agency hereby appoints the agents, subagents, 
contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, vendors and suppliers of 
the Company as agents of the Agency solely for purposes of 
making sales or leases of goods, services, and supplies to the 
Facility, and any such transaction between any agent, subagent, 
contractor, subcontractor, materialmen, vendor or supplier, and the 
Company, as agent of the Agency shall be deemed to be on behalf 
of the Agency and for the benefit of the Facility.  The Company 
shall indemnify the Agency with respect to any transaction of any 
kind between and among the agents, subagents, contractors, 
subcontractors, materialmen, vendors and/or suppliers and the 
Company, as agent of the Agency.

Section 5.  The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 
Transaction Counsel and Agency Counsel in connection with the 
lease-leaseback transaction. 
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Section 6.  Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 
authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to 
prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to 
effect the lease-leaseback transaction. 

Section 7.   The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 
(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to 
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution.

Section 8.  This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the proceedings of the 
Agency in connection with such matter.

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in public session 
on December 8, 2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following members 
were:

Members Present: 

Members Present – WebEx: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

EDGE Staff Present – WebEx:

Other Attendees:   

Other Attendees – WebEx: 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, with the 
members voting as follows:

Aye Nay Abstain

Ferris Betrus ______ ______ ______

Michael Fitzgerald ______ ______ ______

David Grow ______ ______ ______

Mary Faith Messenger ______ ______ ______

Kirk Hinman ______ ______ ______

Eugene Quadraro ______ ______ ______

Steve Zogby ______ ______ ______
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and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.

The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to and 
approved at such meeting.
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open 
Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the 
time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103a 
and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum 
present throughout.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of 
December 2023.

_____________________________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the
New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the ____ day of December 2023 at ______AM, 
local time, at ____________________________, Town of Marcy, Oneida County, New York
in connection with the following matters:
  

Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corporation, on behalf of itself and its 
principals (collectively, the “Company” and sometimes referred to as “EDGE”), or an entity to 
be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing, has applied to the Agency to enter into a 
transaction in which the Agency will assist in construction of a 60,261± square foot single 
story Flex Space building including loading docks and all utilities and infrastructure to 
support the same (collectively, the “Improvements”) on a 17± acre portion of a parcel of land 
situate at 2049 Wafer Loop Road in the Town of Marcy, Oneida County, New York (the 
“Land”); and acquisition and installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment in the 
Improvements (the “Equipment”), to provide light manufacturing, office, labs/technology and 
logistics/warehousing space for supply chain companies for the purpose of supporting the 
semiconductor and advanced electronics industry and in furtherance of the master plan for 
the Marcy Nanocenter site (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment is referred to 
collectively as the “Facility” and the construction and equipping of the Improvements is 
referred to as the “Project”).  The Facility will be initially operated by the Company, and the 
Company will sublease a portion of the Facility to Danfoss Silicon Power LLC (the 
“Sublessee”) for its operation. 

The Agency contemplates it will provide financial assistance in the form of 
exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, exemptions from sales and use taxes on 
materials and/or equipment used or incorporated in the Facility, and payment of real 
property taxes for a period of 49 years consistent with the Agreement Approving PILOT 
Terms and Allocating PILOT Payments dated as of October 1, 2013 by and among the 
Agency, the County of Oneida, Whitesboro Central School District, the Town of Marcy, 
Maynard Fire District, Dunham Public Library and EDGE, conditioned upon the Company 
maintaining (or causing the Subleesee to maintain) certain employment levels at the Facility, 
which financial assistance represents a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption 
Policy, to be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by 
the Agency. 

A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear and 
accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the 
proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of the Facility. A 
copy of the Application for Financial Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, 
including an analysis of the costs and benefits of the proposed Project, is available for public 
inspection at the offices of the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York.

     ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
     DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Dated: December __, 2023  By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT B

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
2024 Real Estate Lease

EDGE Flex Space Facility

1. __________, ____________ of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at _______ a.m. 

2. ________________________, recorded the minutes of the hearing.

3. _________________ then described the proposed project and related 
financial assistance as follows:

Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corporation, on behalf of 
itself and its principals (collectively, the “Company” and sometimes 
referred to as “EDGE”), or an entity to be formed on behalf of any of 
the foregoing, has applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in construction of a 60,261± square foot 
single story Flex Space building including loading docks and all utilities 
and infrastructure to support the same (collectively, the 
“Improvements”) on a 17± acre portion of a parcel of land situate at 
2049 Wafer Loop Road in the Town of Marcy, Oneida County, New 
York (the “Land”); and acquisition and installation of furniture, fixtures 
and equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), to provide light 
manufacturing, office, labs/technology and logistics/warehousing space 
for supply chain companies for the purpose of supporting the 
semiconductor and advanced electronics industry and in furtherance of 
the master plan for the Marcy Nanocenter site (the Land, the 
Improvements and the Equipment is referred to collectively as the 
“Facility” and the construction and equipping of the Improvements is 
referred to as the “Project”).  The Facility will be initially operated by 
the Company, and the Company will sublease a portion of the Facility 
to Danfoss Silicon Power LLC (the “Sublessee”) for its operation.

The Agency contemplates it will provide financial assistance in the 
form of exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, exemptions from 
sales and use taxes on materials and/or equipment used or 
incorporated in the Facility, and payment of real property taxes for a 
period of 49 years consistent with the Agreement Approving PILOT 
Terms and Allocating PILOT Payments dated as of October 1, 2013 by 
and among the Agency, the County of Oneida, Whitesboro Central 
School District, the Town of Marcy, Maynard Fire District, Dunham 
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Public Library and EDGE, conditioned upon the Company maintaining 
(or causing the Sublessee to maintain) certain employment levels at 
the Facility, which financial assistance represents a deviation from the 
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly 
described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the 
Agency.

4. ____________ then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views.

5. ______________ then asked if there were any further comments, and, there 
being none, the hearing was closed at ____ a.m.

___________________________________
[Name]
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
:  SS.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on 
December __, 2023 at _______ a.m. local time, at __________________, Marcy, 
New York 13403 with the original thereof on file in the office of the Issuer, and that 
the same is a true and correct copy of the minutes in connection with such matter.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) pursuant to Title 1 of Article 18-A of the New 
York General Municipal Law, said hearing was open to the general public, and public 
notice of the time and place of said hearing was duly given in accordance with such 
Title 1 of Article 18-A, (ii) the hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members 
of the public had an opportunity to be heard.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of ____________, 
2023.

_________________________________
Secretary
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EXHIBIT C

______________________, 2023

Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corporation
584 Phoenix Drive
Rome NY 13441

RE: Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 2024 Real Estate Lease
(EDGE Flex Space Facility)

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Pursuant to a resolution duly adopted on December 8, 2023, Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) appointed Economic Development Growth Enterprises 
Corporation, on behalf of itself and its principals (collectively, the “Company” and sometimes 
referred to as “EDGE”), or an entity to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing, has 
applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist in 
construction of a 60,261± square foot single story Flex Space building including loading 
docks and all utilities and infrastructure to support the same (collectively, the 
“Improvements”) on a 17± acre portion of a parcel of land situate at 2049 Wafer Loop Road 
in the Town of Marcy, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); and acquisition and 
installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), to 
provide light manufacturing, office, labs/technology and logistics/warehousing space for 
supply chain companies for the purpose of supporting the semiconductor and advanced 
electronics industry and in furtherance of the master plan for the Marcy Nanocenter site (the 
Land, the Improvements and the Equipment is referred to collectively as the “Facility” and 
the construction and equipping of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”).  The 
Facility will be initially operated and/or managed by the Company, and the Company will 
sublease a portion of the Facility to Danfoss Silicon Power LLC for its operation. 

This appointment includes authority to purchase on behalf of the Agency all materials to be 
incorporated into and made an integral part of the Facility, and the following activities as 
they relate to any construction, equipping and completion of any buildings, whether or not 
any materials, equipment or supplies described below are incorporated into or become an 
integral part of such buildings: (i) all purchases, leases, rentals and other uses of tools, 
machinery and equipment in connection with construction and equipping (ii) all purchases, 
rentals, uses or consumption of supplies, materials and services of every kind and 
description used in connection with construction and equipping and (iii) all purchases, 
leases, rentals and uses of equipment, machinery, and other tangible personal property 
(including installation costs), installed or placed in, upon or under such building, including all 
repairs and replacements of such property.



- 2 -
3421915.3

16879668.1 12/4/2023
16879668.2 12/4/2023

The Agency will appoint the Company as its only direct agent for the Project. The agency 
appointment includes the power of the Company to delegate such agency appointment, in 
whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers 
and vendors of the Company and to such other parties as the Company chooses so long as 
they are engaged, directly or indirectly, in the activities hereinbefore described. Please 
advise the Executive Director of the Agency if you wish to appoint a contractor or other 
subagent, and the Agency will issue an ST-60 to that party.

In exercising this agency appointment, you and each of your properly appointed agents and 
subagents must claim the sales tax exemption for all purchases by giving your vendors New 
York State Form ST-123. The supplier or vendor should identify the Facility on each bill or 
invoice as the “EDGE Flex Space Facility” and indicate thereon that the Company, its 
agents, subagents, contractors and subcontractors acted as agent for the Agency in making 
the purchase.

You and each of your agents, subagents, contractors and/or subcontractors claiming a sales 
tax exemption in connection with the Facility must complete a New York State Department 
of Taxation and Finance Form ST-60. Original copies of each completed Form ST-60 must 
be delivered to the Agency within five (5) days of the appointment of each of your agents, 
subagents, contractors or subcontractors.  Any agent, subagent, contractor or 
subcontractors of the Company which delivers completed Form ST-60 to the Agency will be 
deemed to be the agent, subagent, contractor or subcontractor of the Agency for purposes 
of constructing and equipping the Facility, and shall only then be authorized to use Form ST-
123 as described above.  Failure to comply with these requirements may result in loss of 
sales tax exemptions for the Facility.

It is important to note that contractors and subcontractors who have not been appointed 
subagent cannot use the sales tax exemption for equipment rental, tools, supplies and other 
items that do not become part of the finished project. Contractors and subcontractors must 
be appointed as agent or sub-agent of the Agency to use the Agency sales tax exemption 
for these purchases. Contractors and subcontractors who have not been appointed a 
subagent and are making purchases that would otherwise be exempt outside of the 
Agency’s interest in the Facility must claim the sales tax exemption for renovation materials 
by giving their vendors a completed “Contractor Exempt Purchase Certificate” (Form ST-
120.1) checking box (a).

The aforesaid appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency to renovate and  equip 
the Facility shall expire at the earlier of (a) the completion of such activities and 
improvements, or (b) December 8, 2024, provided, however, such appointment may be 
extended at the discretion of the Agency, upon the written request of the Company if such 
activities and improvements are not completed by such time, and further provided that the 
Agency shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to the extension of such appointment.

Based upon representations made by the Company, the value of the sales tax to be abated 
relating to the construction and equipping of the Facility authorized by the Agency is not to 
exceed $61,250.00. The Agency is required by law to recapture any New York State sales 
tax exemptions claimed by the Company that exceed $61,250 for purchases made relating 
to the Project in the aggregate.
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You should be aware that the New York State General Municipal Law requires you to file an 
Annual Statement (Form ST-340) with the New York State Department of Taxation and 
Finance regarding the value of sales tax exemptions you, your agents, consultants or 
subcontractors have claimed pursuant to the authority we have conferred on you with 
respect to the Project. We are providing a form of a worksheet for you to track all exempt 
purchases made in completing the Project, using Forms ST-123 or Form ST-120.1. Please 
provide the Agency with a copy of Form ST-340 along with your annual report to the Agency
and this worksheet. The penalty for failure to file such statement, or to provide a copy to the 
Agency, is the removal of your authority to act as an agent.

If, for some reason, this transaction never closes, you will be liable for payment of the sales 
tax, if applicable and you are not otherwise exempt, on all materials purchased.

Please sign and return a copy of this letter for our files. The Agency will issue and deliver 
Form ST-60 to you upon receipt of this signed agency appointment letter. The Agency 
reserves the right to issue a revised agency appointment letter with respect to the process 
for utilizing and reporting exemptions hereunder.

Very truly yours,

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By: ____________________________________
Name Shawna M. Papale
Title: Executive Director

ACCEPTED & AGREED:

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GROWTH ENTERPRISES CORPORATION

By: ______________________________________
Name: Steven J. DiMeo
Title: President
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Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist

project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental

assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked in the EAF are

answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF

question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Although

the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data available to

DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order

to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is not a

substitute for agency determinations.

B.i.i (Coastal or Waterfront Area]

B.i.ii [Local Waterfront Revitalization Area]

C.2.b. [Special Planning District]

C.2.b. (Special Planning District - Name]

E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site 

Potential Contamination History]

E.1.h.i (DEC Spills or Remediation Site 

Listed]

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site 

Environmental Site Remediation Database]

E.1.h.iii [Within 2,000' of DEC Remediation

Site]

E.2.g [Unique Geologic Features]

E.2.h.i [Surface Water Features]

E.2.h.ii [Surface Water Features]

E.2.h.iii [Surface Water Features]

E.2.h.v [Impaired Water Bodies]

E.2.i. [Floodway]

E.2.j. (100 Year Floodplain]

E.2.k. (500 Year Floodplain]

E.2.1. [Aquifers]

E.2.1. [Aquifer Names]

E.2.n. (Natural Communities]

No

No

Yes - Digital mapping data are not available for all Special Planning Districts.

Refer to EAF Workbook.

NYS Heritage Areas:Mohawk Valley Heritage Corridor

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.

Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Yes

Principal Aquifer

No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



E.2.o. [Endangered or Threatened Species] No

E.2.p. [Rare Plants or Animals] No

E.3.a. [Agricultural District] No

E.3.c. [National Natural Landmark] No

E.3.d [Critical Environmental Area] No

E.3.e. [National or State Register of Historic Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Places or State Eligible Sites] Workbook.

E.3.f. [Archeological Sites] Yes

E.3.i. [Designated River Corridor] No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report 2
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June 2, 2021 

 

Nick Bruno 

Associate Vice President of Business Development 

Mohawk Valley EDGE 

584 Phoenix Drive 

Rome, NY 13441 

 

Re:  Marcy Nanocenter Farmer Parcel/Flex Space project 

 

 

Dear Mr. Bruno, 

 

This letter is to confirm the approval of the phase 1 site plan for the referenced project by 

the Town of Marcy Planning Board. 

 

On February 22, 2021, the Planning Board determined that the proposed site 

development plan is consistent with the approved Marcy Nanocenter site plan as 

amended in 2015 with SEQR findings by the lead agent: Marcy Town Board. There 

are no anticipated significant adverse impacts because the project is within the allowed 

thresholds and the required infrastructure improvements have been substantially 

completed including road access, water main, sewer main, and overall site storm water 

management and wetlands mitigation. Mitigation measures for site-specific and 

construction phase impacts will be addressed in the conditions of approval. 

 

On April 12, 2021, the Planning Board approved the Site Plan for the initial 50,000 

SF of Flex Space Development with the condition that screening be provided along the 

northern portion of this site. 

 

Please contact me with any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Robert Lambe, Chair 

Marcy Planning Board 

 

Town of Marcy 
8801 Paul Becker Road 

Marcy, New York   13403 
(315) 768-4800(phone)  (315) 768-1305(fax) 

www.townofmarcy.org 
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RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT GROWTH ENTERPRISES 
CORPORATION (FLEX SPACE FACILITY) WILL NOT 
HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corporation, on behalf 
of itself and its principals (collectively, the “Company” and sometimes referred to as 
“EDGE”), or an entity to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing, has applied to the 
Agency to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist in construction of a 
60,261± square foot single story Flex Space building including loading docks and all 
utilities and infrastructure to support the same (collectively, the “Improvements”) on a 
17± acre portion of a parcel of land situate at 2049 Wafer Loop Road in the Town of 
Marcy, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); and acquisition and installation of 
furniture, fixtures and equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), to provide light 
manufacturing, office, labs/technology and logistics/warehousing space for supply chain 
companies for the purpose of supporting the semiconductor and advanced electronics 
industry and in furtherance of the master plan for the Marcy Nanocenter site (the Land, 
the Improvements and the Equipment is referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the 
construction and equipping of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the construction and equipping 
of the Facility may have a "significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted term is 
defined in the SEQR Act and the Regulations) and therefore require the preparation of 
an environmental impact statement; and 
 

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the acquisition, 
construction, and equipping of the Facility may have a significant effect upon the 
environment, the Agency has reviewed documentation including (1) the Draft Generic 
Environmental Impact Statement (DGEIS), Volume I and II, dated October 2000, which 
was accepted by the Town of Marcy Town Board (“Town Board”) on October 16, 2000; 
(2) the Final Generic Environmental Impact Statement (FGEIS), dated March 2001, 
which was accepted by the Town Board on March 22, 2001; (3) the NYS Office of 
Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation letter dated February 16, 2001; (4) the NYS 
Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation letter dated December 4, 2012; (5) 
a Resolution of the Town Board adopted December 5, 2013; (6) a Resolution of the 
Town Board adopted November 19, 2015; (7) a Part 1 EAF prepared by the Company 



 

 
  
   
16885416.1 12/4/2023 
16885416.2 12/5/2023 

dated February 8, 2021 and submitted to the Town of Marcy Planning Board (the 
“Planning Board”) in support of the Company’s request for Site Plan Approval; (8) a 
letter from the Planning Board dated June 2, 2021 confirming Site Plan Approval; (9) a 
letter from the Planning Board dated November 17, 2023 regarding its supplemental 
review of the change in scope of the Project as it pertained to Site Plan approval; and 
(10) a Part 1 EAF submitted by the Company to the Agency dated December 4, 2023 
relating to the Project, all of which are on file at the office of the Agency, and such other 
documentation as the Agency deemed appropriate; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined such 

documentation in order to make a determination as to the potential environmental 
significance of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the 
documentation referenced above, including the DGEIS and the FGEIS, and based 
further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area surrounding the Facility and such 
further investigation of the Facility and its environmental effects as the Agency has 
deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the following findings and determinations with 
respect to the Facility: 
 

(A) The Facility is as described in the Application; 
 

(B) The Facility constitutes a “Type I Action” (as defined in the 
Regulations); 

 
(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 

noted in the documents pertaining to the Facility, including the DGEIS and the 
FGEIS, and none are known to the Agency; 

 
(D) The Facility will not result in (i) substantial adverse change in 

existing air quality; ground or surface water quality or quantity, traffic or noise 
levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; or a substantial increase 
in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; (ii) the removal 
or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna; substantial interference 
with the movement of a resident or migratory fish or wildlife species; impacts on a 
significant habitat area; substantial adverse impacts on threatened or 
endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or (iii) 
other significant adverse impacts to natural resources;  
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(E) The Facility will not affect a critical environmental area as 
designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g);  

 
(F) The Facility will not conflict with the community's current 

plans or goals as officially approved or adopted; 
 

(G) The Facility will not result in the impairment of the character 
or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or aesthetic 
resources or of existing community or neighborhood character;  

 
(H) The Facility will not result in a major change in the use of 

either the quantity or type of energy; 
 

(I) The Facility will not result in the creation of a hazard to 
human health; 

 
(J) The Facility will not result in a substantial change in the use, 

or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses; 

 
(K) The Facility will not result in encouraging or attracting of a 

large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, compared 
to the number of people who would come to such place absent the action; 

 
(L) The Facility will not result in the creation of a material 

demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences;  

 
(M) The Facility will not result in changes in two or more 

elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 
environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and 

 
(N) The Facility will not result in two or more related actions 

undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or would have 
a significant impact on the environment, but when considered cumulatively would 
meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 617.7(c).   

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby determines that the Facility will not have 

a significant impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the preparation 
of an environmental impact statement with respect to the Facility.  The Agency has 
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prepared a negative declaration with respect to the Facility which describes the basis for 
its decision that the Facility will not have a significant impact on the environment.   
 

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 
file in the Agency's records the negative declaration with respect to the Facility and to 
file and distribute the negative declaration in accordance with the Regulations.. 

 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
                   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Agency 
duly convened in public session on December 8, 2023 at 8:00 a.m. local time, at 584 
Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York at which the following members were: 

 

Members Present:  
 
Members Present – WebEx:  
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 
EDGE Staff Present – WebEx:  
 
Other Attendees:   
 
Other Attendees – WebEx:  
 
 
 

 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to 
vote, with the members voting as follows: 

 Aye Nay Abstain 
 
Ferris Betrus ______ ______ ______ 

Michael Fitzgerald ______ ______ ______ 

David Grow ______ ______ ______ 
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Mary Faith Messenger ______ ______ ______ 

Kirk Hinman  ______ ______ ______ 

Eugene Quadraro ______ ______ ______ 

Steve Zogby ______ ______ ______ 

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all directors of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open 
Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the 
time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103a 
and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum 
present throughout. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of the _____ day of 
December 2023. 

 
 

_________________________________ 
            Shawna Papale, Secretary 
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